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TO:

SECURITIES AND EX
COMMISSIO

CHANGE

LATION DEP]

MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATIO
NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING “i APR 24 2014 i!i i )
MAR
BY:

ALL STOCKHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION (the
“Corporation”) will hold its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 19, 2014, 1:00 p.m. at The Blue Leaf
Filipinas, Belle Avenue, Aseana City, Parafnaque City 1702, at which meeting the following matters
shall be taken up:

118
2
3.

No

9.

Call to Order

Certification of the Existence of Quorum and the Sending of Notices

Approval of the Minutes of the Last Stockholders’ Meetings held on June 21, 2013 and
October 8, 2013

Report of the Chairman or President

Approval of the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation for the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Election of the Members of the Board of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Approval of the Further Amendments to the Amended Articles of Incorporation of the
Corporation

Ratification of Actions Taken by the Board of Directors and Officers since the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 21, 2013

10. Other Matters
11. Adjournment

The record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the said
meeting is fixed at the close of business hours on March 31, 2014.

All stockholders who will not attend the meeting in person, may prepare, date and sign a proxy, and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary at the G/F Two E-Com Center, Harbor Drive
cor. Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City 1300 Philippines not later than May 12,
2014. The proxies submitted shall be validated on the same day at the office of the Corporate
Secretary.

Pasay Ci

hifippines, April 24, 2014,

Marissa Tomacruz-Academia
Corporate Sdcretary

|ME —4:21\



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE  SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

COMMISSION
I Ew Ewdways i
Check the appropriate box: D \
[ ]Preliminary Information Statement APR 2 b 201!{ U
\F LT
[v] Definitive Information Statement MARKET REGULATION DEPT.
BY: Laanf_ Tive:_ 2 €D

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter ~ MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES)
RESORTS CORPORATION

METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

SEC Identification Number 58648

BIR Tax Identification Code 000-410-840-000

Aseana Boulevard cor. Roxas Boulevard, Brgy. Tambo, Parafaque City 1701
Address of principal office Postal Code

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code c/o (02) 866-9888

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

Date May 19, 2014
Time 1:00 p.m.
Place : The Blue Leaf Filipinas

Belle Avenue, Aseana City
Paranaque City 1702

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: April 25, 2014

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the
RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of
Common Stock Outstanding
QOutstanding or Amount of Treasury Shares Common Stock

Debt Outstanding

Common 4,426,303,300 NIL 4,426,303,300

Total 4,426,303,300 NIL 4,426,303,300



12.

Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes ¥ No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange Common Shares

MCP MANAGEMENT IS NOT SOLICITING PROXIES FOR
THIS STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING.
PLEASE DO NOT SEND MCP MANAGEMENT YOUR PROXY.
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INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

The Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation (the
“Corporation” or “MCP") will be held on May 19, 2014 at 1:00 p.m. at The Blue Leaf Filipinas, Belle
Avenue, Aseana City, Paranaque City, 1702.

THE CORPORATION HAS SET APRIL 25, 2014 AS THE APPROXIMATE DATE ON WHICH THE
INFORMATION STATEMENT IS FIRST TO BE SENT OR GIVEN TO SECURITY HOLDERS.

Item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Stockholders of the Corporation shall have appraisal right, or the right to dissent and demand payment
of the fair value of their shares in the manner provided for under Section 82 of the Corporation Code of
the Philippines, under any of the following circumstances:

* Incase of any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, which has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of stockholders or any class of shares, or authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or extending or shortening the
term of the Corporation’s cotporate existence;

* In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Corporation’s assets as provided under the Corporation Code; and

» Incase of merger or consolidation of the Corporation with ancther corporation.

The appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have voted against the proposed
corporate action, by making a written demand on the Corporation within thirty (30) days after the date
on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair value of his shares: Provided, that failure to make
the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If the proposed
corporate action is implemented or effected, the Corporation shall pay to such stockholder, upon
surrender of the certificate or certificates of stock representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of
the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in
anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the Corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be
named by the stockholder, another by the Corporation, and the third by the two (2) thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the Corporation
within thirty (30) days after such award is made. Provided, that no payment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the Corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover
such payment; and provided, further, that upon payment by the Corporation of the agreed or awarded
price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the Corporation.

There are no corporate actions or matters to be taken up at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting that
may give rise to the exercise by the stockholders of the right of appraisal.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon
No current Director or Officer of the Corporation or nominee for election as directors of the

Corporation or any associate thereof, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security
holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon other than election to office.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

{tem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a)

(b)

The Corporation has a total of 4,426,303,300 common shares outstanding as of March 31,
2014 held by a total of 440 stockholders.

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Board of Directors at a special meeting held on March 13,
2014, all stockholders at the close of business hours on March 31, 2014 shall be entitled to
notice and to vote at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting scheduled on May 19, 2014, The
stockholders will vote on matters scheduled to be taken up at the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting with each share being entitled to cast one (1) vote.

(c) For the election of Directors, stockholders entitled to vote may vote such number of shares for
as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or may cumulate said shares and give
one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected muitiplied by the
number of their shares shall equal or may distribute them on the same principle among as
many candidates as they shall see fit.

Pursuant to Article V, Section 7 of the Corporation's By-Laws, a stockholder may vote in
person or by proxy.

(d) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management
a. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners of more than 5%

As of the date of distribution of this Information Statement, the Corporation knows of no one
who beneficially owns in excess of 5% of the Corporation’s common stock except as set forth
below:
Title of Name and Address Name of Citizenship | No. of Shares | Percent to
Class of Record Owner Beneficial Held Outstanding
and Relationship to | Owner and Shares
Issuer Relationship
with Record
Owner
Common | MCE (Philippines) MCE British Virgin | 3,2086,677,096 | 72.45%
Investments Limited (Philippines) Islands
Investments (‘BVI"M)
Jayla Place, Limited
Wickams Cay |, Road
Town, British Virgin
Islands
Stockholder of
Record
Common | MCE (Philippines) MCE BvI 173,834,268 3.93%
Investments No.2 (Philippines)
Corporation Investments
Limited
18th Floor, Liberty
Center, 104 H.V. dela
Costa St., Salcedo Parent
Village Company of
MCE
Stockholder of {Philippines)
Record Investments
No.2
Corporation




b. Security Ownership of Management

The following are the securities owned and held by the Directors and Executive Officers of
the Corporation as of the date of distribution of this Information Statement:

A. Directors

Title Amount and Percent to
Common Name of Director Citizenship Nature of Total
Record/Beneficial | Outstanding
Ownership' Shares
Common | Clarence Yuk Man Chung Chinese 100 NIL
Common | Jose F. Buenaventura Filipino 28,125 NIL
Common | Johann M. Albano Filipino 3,000 NIL
Common | William Todd Nisbet American 100 NIL
James Andrew Charles .
Common MacKenzie Australian 100 NIL
Common | Alec Yiu Wa Tsui British 100 NI
Common | J.Y. Teo Kean Yin Singaporean 200 NIL
Common | Maria Marcelina O. Cruzana Filipino 100 NIL
Common | Liberty A. Sambua Filipino 100 NIL
B. Executive Officers
Amount and Percent to
Title . . . . Nature of Total
Common Name of Executive Officer | Citizenship Record/Beneficial | Outstanding
Ownership2 Shares
Common | Clarence Yuk Man Chung Chinese 100 NIL
- Kevin Sim Malaysian - -
- Marissa Tomacruz-Academia | Filipino - -
- Adrian Hsen Bin Au Australian - -

' (1) Clarence Yuk Man Chung and William Todd Nisbet hold the shares in trust and for the benefit of MCE
(Philippines) Investments Limited. (2) Johann M. Albano replaced Frances Marie T. Yuyucheng as a member of
the Board of Directors on April 11, 2014. Mr. Albano holds the shares in trust and for the benefit of MCE
(Philippines) Investments No.2 Corporation. (3) Jose F. Buenaventura is the direct and beneficial owner of the
shares held by him, (4} J.Y. Teo Kean Yin, Maria Marcelina O. Cruzana and Liberty A. Sambua replaced Rena
M. Rico-Pamfilo, Yvette P. Chua and Ana Cristina Collantes-Garcia as members of the Board of Directors on
March 13, 2014. Ms. Teo, Ms. Cruzana and Ms. Sambua hold the shares in trust and for the benefit of MCE
gPhiIippines) Investments No.2 Corporation.

Clarence Yuk Man Chung holds the shares in trust and for the benefit of MCE (Philippines) Investments
Limited.



C. Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

There are no voting trusts or similar arrangement covering the shares of stock of the Corporation.

D. Changes in Control

There were no arrangements which have resulted in a change in control of the Corporation in the iast

fiscal year.

Item 5, Directors and Executive Officers

The members of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers of the Corporation as of the date of
distribution of this Information Statement, and the summaries of their respective credentials and

business experience for the last five {5) years, are as follows:

TERM OF OFFICE

Chief Operating Officer

NAME AND POSITION | AGE | CITizENsHIP | ASADIREGTOR/ | FERIOD SERVED AS A
DIRECTOR / OFFICER
OFFICER
Clarence Yuk Man Chung
President/Chairman of the 51 Chinese 1 year Since Dec. 19, 2012
Board/Director
Jose F. Buenaventura 79 Fiiipino 1 year Since Feb. 20, 2013
Director
Joh M. Alb Serving the unexpired
ghann M. Albano __ terrn until the next : :
Director 37 Filipino Annual Stockholders' Since April 11, 2014
Meeting on May 19,
2014.
LY. Teo K Yi Serving the unexpired
Y. Teo Kean Yin . term until the next .
Direcior 34 | Singaporean Annual Stockholders” Since Mar. 13, 2014
Meeting on May 19,
2014,
Maria Marcelina O. SF;N‘“Q thel ;ﬁexﬂirﬂd
S erm until the next "
Ct_'uzana 55 Filipino Annual Stockholders’ Since Mar. 13, 2014
Director Meeting on May 19,
2014.
Liberty A. Samb Serving the unexpired
ol<] . sambua S term until the next .
Director 29 Filipino Annual Stockholders’ Since Mar. 13, 2014
Meeting on May 19,
2014,
William Todd Nisbet 46 American 1 year Since Dec. 19, 2012
Director
James Ar.1drew Charles 60 Australian 1 year Since Dec. 19, 2012
MacKenzie
Independent Director
Alec Yiu Wa Tsuj 64 British 1 year Since Dec. 19, 2012
Independent Director
Kevin Sim 51 Malaysian 1 year Since Mar. 26, 2013




TERM OF OFFICE

NAME AND POSITION | AGE | CITIZENSHIP | ASADIREGTOR; | '.ERIOD SERVED ASA
DIRECTOR / OFFICER
OFFICER
Marissa Tomacruz-
Academia Serving the unexpired *Since Jan. 22, 2014
Corporate Information 47 Filipino term until the next **Since Mar. 13, 2014
Officer* Annual Stockholders’

Meeting on May 19,
Corporate Secretary/ 20143

Compliance Officer*

Adrian Hsen Bin A Serving thei uhnexpired Since Mar. 13, 2014
rian [Asen 8in Au . term until the next
Treasurer 40 Austra“an Annual Stockholders'
Meeting on May 19,
20143

Clarence Yuk Man Chung — President / Chairman of the Board / Direcior

Mr. Chung was appointed as Chairman and President of the Corporation on December 19, 2012, Mr,
Chung was appointed as Director of Melco Crown Entertainment Limited {"MCE") in November 2006
and has been an Executive Director of Melco International Development Limited since May 20086, Mr.
Chung has been the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc., a
NASDAQ listed company, since Aug 2008 and October 2008, respectively. Mr. Chung has more than
twenty five (25) years of experience in the finance industry in various capacities as a chief financial
officer, an investment banker and a merger and acquisition specialist. Mr. Chung obtained a master
degree in business administration from the Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University
and The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and a bachelor degree in business
administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

Jose F. Buenaventura — Director

Mr. Buenaventura joined Romulo Mabanta Buenaventura Sayoc & de los Angeles in 1976 and is
currently a senior partner. He graduated from the Ateneo de Manila with a degree in Bachelor of Law
and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1959. He sits in the boards of various companies, including
Gebu Pacific Air, BDO Unibank, Inc. (Independent Director), GROW, Inc., GROW Holdings, Inc., La
Concha Land Investments Corporation, Philippine First Insurance Co.,, Inc., Philam Plans, Inc.,
Techzone Philippines, Inc., The Country Ciub, Inc., Total Consolidated Asset Management, Inc., and
Turner Entertainment Manila, Inc. He is the President and a director of Consolidated Coconut
Corporation and Milano Co., Inc. He is likewise a director and the Corporate Secretary of 2B3C
Foundation, Inc., and the Corporate Secretary of Capital Managers and Advisors, Inc. :

Johann M. Albano — Direcior
Mr. Albano was appointed as a director of the Corporation on April 11, 2014. He brings with him years
of experience in business development. He graduated from Ateneo de Manila University with a

Bachelor's Degree in Economics and holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from J.L.
Kellogg School of Management and HKUST Business School

J.Y. Teo Kean Yin — Director

Ms. Teo was appointed as a director of the Corporation on March 13, 2014. Ms. Teo has extensive
gaming working experiences in South East Asia, including the Philippines, Singapore and Cambodia.

® Frances Marie T. Yuyucheng resigned as Corporate Information Officer on January 22, 2014 and was replaced by Marissa
Tomacruz-Academia. Ms. Yuyucheng also resigned as Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer and was replaced by Ms.
Academia as of March 13, 2014.

4 Geoffrey Stuart Davis resigned in his capacity as Treasurer of the Caorporation and was replaced by Adrian Hsen Bin Au as of
March 13, 2014.



She has a Diploma in Business specializing in Corporate Communication Marketing from Temasek
Polytechnic (Singapore) and holds a Diploma Slot Management from The Slot Academy (Singapore)
and a Bachelor of Business Communication from the University of Queensland (Brisbane, Australia).

Maria Marcelina Q. Cruzana — Director

Ms. Cruzana was appointed as a director of the Corporation on March 13, 2014. Ms. Cruzana is a
Licensed Certified Public Accountant with a total of twenty five (25) years of professional experience.
She held various positions in finance and accounting functions as Finance Controller, Finance
Manager as well as Finance and Administration Manager. She graduated Cum Laude from
Polytechnic University of the Philippines ("PUP") with a bachelor degree in Science in Accountancy
and holds a Master's Degree (Business Administration) from PUP Graduate School.

Liberty A. Sambua — Director

Ms. Sambua was appointed as a director of the Corporation on March 13, 2014. She has multiple
years of auditing, accounting and finance working experience in an audit/accounting firm and a private
company. She also has been with Chevron Philippines, Inc. as a Credit Analyst. Ms. Sambua is a
Licensed Certified Public Accountant and holds a bachelor degree in Science in Accountancy from
PUP.

William Todd Nisbet — Director

Mr. Nisbet, who was appointed as a director of the Corporation on December 19, 2012, joined the
Crown Limited team (now Crown Resorts Limited) in October 2007. In his role as Executive Vice
President — Strategy & Development, Mr. Nisbet is responsible for all project development and
construction operations of Crown Resorts Limited, Mr. Nisbet is also a Director of MCE and Studio City
International Holdings Limited. From August 2000 through to July 2007, Mr. Nisbet held the position of
Executive Vice President — Project Director for Wynn Design and Development, a development
subsidiary of Wynn Resorts Limited (“Wynn"). Prior to joining Wynn, Mr. Nisbet was the Vice
President of Operations for Marnell Corrac Associates. During his fourteen (14) years at Marnell
Corrao (1986 to 2000), Mr. Nisbet was responsible for managing various aspects of the construction of
Las Vegas’ most elaborate and industry-defining properties. Mr. Nisbet holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Finance from the University of Nevada, Las Vegas.

James Andrew Charles MacKenzie — Director

Mr. James Andrew Charles MacKenzie was appointed as an independent director of the Corporation
on December 19, 2012. He has extensive experience as a company director also serving as co-vice
chairman of Yancoal Australia Limited from June 28, 2012 and having held a number of directorships
including non-executive director and chairman of Mirvac Group from November 2005 to January 2014
and November 2005 to November 2013 respectively and non-executive director and chairman of
Pacific Brands Ltd from May 2008 to May 2013 and May 2008 to May 2012 respectively, He led the
transformation of the Victorian Government’s Personal Injury Schemes from 2000 to 2007 and prior to
2005, he held senior executive positions with ANZ Banking Group, Standard Chartered Bank and
Norwich Union plc. A chartered accountant by profession since 1977, Mr. MacKenzie was, prior to
2005, a partner in both the Melbourne and Hong Kong offices of an international accounting firm now
part of Deloitte. In 2001, Mr. MacKenzie was awarded the Australian Centenary Medal for services to
public administration. He obtained a bachelor of business (accounting and quantitative methods)
degree from the Swinbume University of Technology in 1974. Mr. MacKenzie has been a Fellow of
both the institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and the Australian Institute of Company
Directors since 1974 and 1994, respectively. He is the chairman of the Corporation’s audit committee.

Alec Yiu Wa Tsui — Director

Mr. Tsui was appointed as an independent director of the Corporation on December 19, 2012, and as
an independent non-executive director of MCE on December 18, 2006. Mr. Tsui has extensive
experience in finance and administration, corporate and strategic planning, information technology and
human resources management, having served at various international companies. Mr. Tsui graduated
from the University of Tennessee with a bachelor's degree in industrial engineering in 1975 and a
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master of engineering degree in 1976. He completed a program for senior managers in government at
the John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University in 1993. He is the chairman of the
Corporation's nominating and corporate governance committee and compensation committee.

Kevin Sim — Chief Operating Officer

On March 26, 2013, the Corporation appointed Mr. Sim as Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Sim previously
served as Executive Vice President for Genting Highlands Resort, in charge of all aspects of
operations including the casino, hotels and various other operating divisions. Prior to this role, he was
Senior Vice President of Casino Operations, Vice President of Slots, and Vice President of Finance.
Mr. Sim was also instrumental in starting the Business Intelligence Unit at Genting Highlands Resort,
where data mining is used extensively to drive various Customer Relationship Management initiatives,
Prior to working at Genting Malaysia Berhad, Mr. Sim was the Vice President of Finance for Naga
Resorts, a casino operator in Cambodia. Mr. Sim is a qualified Chartered Accountant and a Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He graduated from the University of
London with BSc (Hons) Mathematics and began his career as an auditor with various Chartered
Accountant firms in England and later with Coopers & Lybrand in Malaysia.

Marissa Tomacruz-Academia — Corporate Secretary / Corporate Information Officer / Compliance
Officer

On January 22, 2014, Ms. Academia was appointed as the Corporate Information Officer of the
Corporation. She was subsequently appointed as the Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer on
March 13, 2014. Ms. Academia is the Vice-President for Legal Affairs of the Corporation. She brings
with her more than twenty (20) years of experience in corporate practice. Prior to joining the
Corporation, she was the Chief Legal Counsel of Thunderbird Resorts, Inc. from 2009 to 2013 and
was a Partner in Herrera Teehankee Cabrera Law Offices where she held practice from 1994 to 2009.
She obtained her Juris Doctor of Law degree from the Ateneo Law School in 1993 and was admitted
to the Philippine Bar.

Adrian Hsen Bin Au — Treasurer

On March 13, 2014, Mr. Au was appointed as the Treasurer of the Corporation. Mr. Au brings with him
years of experience in credit and collection, finance, audit and compliance. He has worked for various
major casinos in Macau and Australia, He was part of the pre-opening feams for four (4) properties in
Macau including Galaxy Macau and City of Dreams, He is also a qualified Chartered Accountant with
extensive experience across gaming audit, casing accounting, casino credit and collections and AML
compliance. Prior to joining the Corporation, he was previously the Assistant Vice-President for
Finance for Galaxy Entertainment in Macau and Director of Casino Control & Compliance for Melco
Crown Macau from 2007 to March 2010,

Significant Employees

There is not a person who is not an Executive Officer expected by the Corporation to make significant
contribution to the business.

Family Relationship

There are no family relationships up to the fourth (4‘“) civil degree, either by consanguinity or affinity,
among directors, executive officers or persons nominated or chosen by the registrant to become
directors or executive officers.

Involvement of Directors and Officers in Certain Legal Proceedings

During the past five (5) years and until the date of distribution of this Information Statement, the
members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Officers:

a)  have not filed any bankruptcy petitions or have not had bankruptcy petitions filed against
them;

b) have not been convicted by final judgment or have any pending criminal cases;

¢}  have not been subject to any order, judgment or decree, or any court of competent
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jurisdiction (in a civil action), not subsequently reversed or vacated limiting its involvement in
any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and

d) have not been found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil
action), the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC") or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-requlatory organization, to
have violated a securities or commodities law.

Disagreement with a Director

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the board of directors since the date of
the last annual meeting of security holders because of disagreement/s with the registrant on any
matter relating to the registrant’s operations, policies or practices, and no director has furnished the
registrant a letter describing such disagreement.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers®

The aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two (2) fiscal years to the Corporation’s
President and other four (4) most highly compensated officers, and other officers and directors ar key

management personnel {(as a group unnamed) are as follows:

Name and Position

Mr. Clarence Yuk Man Chung
Mr. Kevin Sim

Mr. Gary Conde Hann

Mr. Jarlath Lynch

Mr. Michael Quek

e S

Summary of Compensation Table

President and four (4) most highly
compensated officers and/or key
management personnel:

(President / Chairman of the Board)
(Chief Operating Officer)

(Vice President, Slot Operations)
(Vice President, Hotels & Food & Beverage)
(Vice President, Casino Marketing)

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Period from
August 13, 2012 to
December 31, 2012

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind P49,112 B-
Performance bonuses 15,239 -
Post-employment benefits 1,672 -
Share-based compensation 19,312 -
85,935 R-

Period from

Year Ended August 13, 2012 to

All other officials, key management personnel
and Directers as a group unnamed:

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind R32,048 B-
Performance bonuses 5,000 -
Post-employment benefits 91 -
Share-based compensation 16,197 -

P53,336 R

5 In thousands of Philippine peso.

12



Considering that the Corporation is at an early stage of development and pre-opening stages and has
not yet commenced full recruitment efforts, the Corporation cannot accurately estimate the aggregate
remuneration to be paid to its senior executives as a group for the ensuing fiscal year. However, the
Corporation expects fo offer competitive compensation packages to its senior executives, on par with
other gaming resorts in the Philippines.

Compensation of Directors

The Corporation did not pay any compensation to the Directors for the year ended December 31,
2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

None.
Warrants and Options Qutstanding
Please refer to ltem 8.
Item 7. Independent Public Accountants
1. External Audit Fees and Services
For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31,

2012, the fees for audit work and other services performed by SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. ("SGV")
for the parent company and its subsidiaries were as follows:

2013 2012

In thousands of Philippine peso

External audit fees and services RB2,795 B1,772
Audit service fee for placing and 4,659 -
subscripfion transaction

Other non-audit service fees 920 -
Tax fees 3,801 233
Out-of-pocket expenses 284 66

a)  External audit fees were incurred for the professional services rendered for the audit of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries’ annual financial statements and reporting to group auditor.

b) External audit service fee were incurred for professional services rendered for the placing
and subscription transaction.

c) Other non-audit service fees were incurred for professional services rendered for various

agreed-upon procedures work and review of quarterly condensed consalidated financial
statements,

d) Tax fees were incurred for professional services rendered for tax accounting, tax
compliance audit, and other advisory work.

e) Estimated out-of-pocket expenses were incurred for incidental costs incurred in relation to
the services rendered.

2. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
To the best knowledge of the undersigned Corporate Secretary, there are no disagreements on

any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or accounting
scope or procedure with the Corporation’s external auditor.
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ltem 8. Compensation Plans

On February 19, 2013, the Corporation’s stockholders approved a share incentive plan to grant shares
and options to qualified employees, directors, officers and other qualified persons at an exercise price
and vesting periods to be determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. On
April 12, 2013, the SEC resolved that the issuance of the 131,578,947 common shares under the plan
was exempt from registration requirements under Section 10.2 of the Securities Regulation Code.

On June 21, 2013, the Corporation’s stockholders approved the minor amendments on the additional
provisions of the share incentive plan made in order to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*"HKLR")
since MCE, the ultimate holding company, is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The amendments include, but not limited to, additional provisions for compliance with HKLR
requirements (i) when awards are granted to “connected persons” (as such term is defined under
HKLR); and (ii) on restriction on timing of grant of awards. On June 24, 2013, additional 44,214,138
common shares were granted exemption from registration by the SEC.

On June 28, 2013, 181,239,503 underlying shares related to shares and options under the share
incentive plan were granted, and the Corporation has filed a request for exemption for the issuance of
the additional 5,446,418 common shares. On August 12, 2013, additional 5,446,418 common shares
were granted exemption from registration by the SEC.

Under the share incentive plan, various share-based awards, including but not limited to, options to
purchase the Corporation’s shares, restricted shares, share appreciation rights and other types of
awards may be granted. The term of such awards shall not exceed ten (10) years from the date of-
grant. The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued pursuant to all awards under
the share incentive plan is 5% of the issued capital stock of the Corporation.

The Corporation did not have warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2013. Below are the details of
the outstanding restricted shares and share options of the Corporation as at December 31, 2013;

Date of grant: June 28, 2013
Exercise price: £330
Market price as date of grant:  R8.30
Number of restricted Number of share
Recipients shares options
President 5,202,425 10,404,851
Treasurer 1,040,485 2,080,970
Chief Operating Officer 1,300,606 2,601,213
Secretary - -
All other officers, key management personnel
and Directors as a group 11,965,578 23,931,155
Others 38,562,982 77,125,964
Total 58,072,076 116,144,153

No further action from the stockholders is to be taken with respect to the foregoing share incentive
plan.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

There is no stockholders' action to be taken with respect to the authorization or jssuance of any
securities otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Corporation.
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item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There is no stockholders’ action to be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities
of the Corporation, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
Carporation in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

item 11. Financial and Other Information

There is no stockholders’ action with respect to any matter specified in ltems 9 or 10 hereof.

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

There is no stockholders’ action to be taken with regard to the following: (a) the merger or
consolidation of the Corporation into or with any other person or of any other person into or with the
Corporation; {b) the acquisition by the Corporation or any of its security helders of securities of another
person; (c) the acquisition by the Corporation of any other going business or of the assets thereof; (d)
the sale or other transfer of all or any substantial part of the assets of the Corporation; and (&) the
liquidation or dissolution of the Corporation.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There is no stockholders’ action to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any
property.

Iltem 14, Restatement of Accounts

There is no action to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital, or surplus account
of the Corporation.

D. OTHER MATTERS

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

The following are included in the Agenda for the May 19, 2014 Annual Stockholders' Meeting for the
approval of the stockholders of the Corporation:

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Last Stockholders’ Meetings held on June 21, 2013 and
October 8, 2013

2. Report of the Chairman or President

3. Approval of the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation for the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

4. Election of the Members of the Board of Directors

5. Appointment of External Auditor

6. Approval of the Further Amendments to the Amended Articles of Incorporation of the
Corporation

7. Ratification of Actions Taken by the Board of Directors and Officers since the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 21, 2013

ltem 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

Ratification of All Acts, Confracts, Investments and Resolutions of the Board of Directors and
Management since the last Stockholders’ Meeting

As a matter of corporate policy, Management seeks the approval and ratification by the Stockholders
of all acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management since
October 8, 2013, the date of the last stockholders’ meeting. These are reflected in the minutes of the
meetings of the Board of Directors, in the regular reports and disclosures to the SEC and to the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE™, and in the 2013 Annual Report and Report of the Chairman.
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Iltem 17. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation as follows:

Proposed Amendment Reason / General Effect
To amend the First Article of the Articles of | The adoption of the business name is in
Incorporation to adopt “Melco Crown Philippines” | compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular
as a business name of the corporation. No. 21, Series of 2013.

Item 18. Other Proposed Action
There is no other action with respect to any matter not specifically referred to above.
Iltem 19, Voting Procedures

The Chairman will announce each proposal to the floor, which shall be voted upon separately. In the
absence of any objection from the floor, the Chairman shall instruct the Corporate Secretary to enter a
unanimous vote of approval. If there is an objection, the Chairman will call for a division of the house.,
The votes of stockholders present in person or by Proxy shall be counted by hand, and the Chairman
will announce the result of the voting, unless voting by ballots is called for. If voting by ballots is
decided, ballots will be distributed to Stockholders present in person or by Proxy in the meeting. The
ballots will be filled up by stockholders, and submitted to the Corporate Secrefary or his duly
authorized representatives. The valid ballots will be counted by the Corporate Secretary or a
committee that the Board may organize for the purpose for the votes of the Stockholders. The
Chairman will then announce the result after the counting.

At the Stockholders’ Meeting, every stockholder shall be entitied to vote for each share of stock which
has voting power upon the matter in question, registered in his name in the books of the Corporation.

A stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be
elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of
directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on
the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit, provided, that the total number of
votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the
corporation muitiplied by the total number of directors to be elected. Provided, however, that no
delinquent stock shall be voted.

Vote Requirement

The following matters require the following votes:

Subject Matter Votes Required
Approval of the Minutes of the Last Stockholders’
Meetings held on June 21, 2013 and October 8, 2013 | Majority of the votes cast
Approval of the Audited Financial Statements of the
Corporation for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Majority of the votes cast
The top nine (9) nominees with the most

Election of the Members of the Board of Directors number of voies cast are elected
Appointment of External Auditor Majority of the votes cast

Approval of Further Amendments to the Amended | Two-thirds (2/3) of outstanding capital
Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation stock

Ratification of Actions Taken by the Board of Directors
and Officers since the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting Majority of the votes cast
held on June 21, 2013.

Undertaking to Provide Annual Report

The Corporation undertakes fo provide each stockholder, without charge, with a copy of its Annual
Report upon written request to the Corporation addressed to the attention of Marissa Tomacruz-
Academia, Corporate Secretary, G/F Two E-Com Center, Harbor Drive cor. Paim Coast Avenue, Mall
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of Asia Complex, Pasay City 1300 Philippines.
MANAGEMENT REPORT

1. 2013 Consolidated Audited Financial Statements and Statement of Management's
Responsibility

The 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation and the Statement of Management's
Responsibility ars filed as part of this Form 20-IS.

2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

The following management’s discussion and analysis relate to the consolidated financial information
and pre-operating results of the Group and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and related notes of the Group as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
and for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31,
2012.

Qverview

The Corporation, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the development, and upon opening, the
operation of an integrated hotel, gaming, retail and entertainment complex within the Bagong Nayong
Pilipino-Entertainment City Manila. The Corporation’s subsidiaries, MCE Holdings (Philippines)
Corporation ("MCE Holdings”), MCE Holdings No. 2 (Philippines) Corporation (“MCE Holdings No.
27}, and MCE Leisure (Philippines) Corporation (‘MCE Leisure”) (collectively referred to as the “MCE
Holdings Group”), together with SM investments Corporation ("SMIC"), Belle Corporation (“Belle”)
and PremiumLeisure Amusement, Inc. (“PLAY") are the holders of the provisional license (the
‘Provisional License") issued by Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation ("PAGCOR”) for
the development of City of Dreams Manila. The Corporation, an indirect subsidiary of MCE, a leading
developer of integrated gaming resorts in Macau and other parts of Asia, and its subsidiary, MCE
Leisure is responsible for the furniture, fixtures and equipment (including gaming equipment), working
capital expenses, non-real property improvements and personal property, as well as the management
and operation of City of Dreams Manila. Beile, one of the largest conglomerates in the Philippines with
interests in retail, real estate development and banking, among others, is responsible for construction
of the principal structures and fixtures of City of Dreams Manila.

City of Dreams Manila is located on an approximately 6.2-hectare site located in Entertainment City,
which is close to Metro Manila’s international airport, central business districts and the Mall of Asia,
one of the world's largest shopping malls. As of the date hereof, construction on the main building is
substantially complete, while fit-out is ongoing. The Corporation believes that upon its expected
completion in 2014, City of Dreams Manila will comprise a luxury integrated tourism resort and gaming
complex, offering a premium gaming experience and differentiated and innovative non-gaming
facilities and entertainment experiences to its customers in a world-class facility.

On October 9, 2013, with the execution of a trade mark licensing agreement signed between the
Corporation and MCE (IP) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of MCE, the Corporation announced that its
new integrated casino resort at Entertainment City, Manila, was branded “City of Dreams Manila”,
Furthermore, following various amendments to gaming regulations in the Philippines by PAGCOR, City
of Dreams Manila is now anticipated to be able to operate up to approximately 365 gaming tables,
1,680 slot machines and 1,680 electronic table games upon opening.

Change in structure and ownership of the Corporation
On February 19, 2013, the stockholders of MCP approved the declassification of the existing B900
million authorized capital stock of MCP, consisting of 60% Class A shares and 40% Class B shares to

a single class of common stock and denial of pre-emptive rights and the increase in MCP’s authorized
capital stock to R5.9 billion divided into 5.9 billon shares with par value of B1.00 per share from
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authorized capital stock of P900 million divided into 900 million shares with par value of B1.00 per
share.

On March 5, 2013, the SEC approved the declassification of the capital stock of MCP to a single class
of common stock and denial of pre-emptive rights. On April 8, 2013, the SEC also approved the
increase in authorized share capital stock of MCP.

On March 20, 2013, MCP entered into the subscription and share sale agreement with MCE
(Philippines) Investments Limited (MCE Investments"), an indirect subsidiary of MCE for the share
subscription transaction, under which MCE Investments subscribed for 2,846,595,000 common shares
of MCP with par value of P1.00 per share at a total consideration of R2,846,595,000. The share
subscription transaction was completed on April 8, 2013,

On April 8, 2013, MCP sold all of its treasury shares, representing 150,435,404 common shares to
third parties at B14.20 per share.

On April 24, 2013, MCP and MCE Investments completed the placing and subscription transaction for
the offer, under which MCE Investments offered and sold in a private placement to various institutional
investors of 981,183,700 commaon shares of MCP with par value of R1.00 per share, at the offer price
of P14.00 per share. In connection with the offer, MCE Investments granted the over-allotment option
of up to 117,075,000 common shares of MCP with par value of £1.00 per share, at the offer price of P
14.00 per share to the stabilizing agent. On May 23, 2013, the stabilizing agent exercised the over-
allotment option and subscribed for 36,024,600 common shares of MCP with par value of R1.00 per
share, at the offer price of R14.00 per share. MCE Investments then used the proceeds from the offer
and over-allotment option to subscribe to an equivalent number of common shares in MCP at the
subscription price of B14.00 per share.

Subsidiaries of MCP and group reorganization

On March 20, 2013, pursuant to the terms of the subscription and share sale agreement, MCP entered
into a deed of assignment with MCE Investments, whereby MCP acquired all equity interests of MCE
Investments in MCE Holdings, consisting of 147,894,500 issued and outstanding common shares with
a par value of R1.00 per share as of March 20, 2013, at a consideration of B7,198,590,000. MCE
Holdings holds 100% direct ownership interests in MCE Holdings No. 2, which in turn holds 100%
direct ownership interests in MCE Leisure. As a result of the asset acquisition transaction, the
companies in the MCE Holdings Group are wholly-owned subsldiaries of MCP. The Corporation and
its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the "Group”.

As of December 31, 2013, MCP's wholly-owned subsidiaries include the MCE Holdings Group. MCE
Holdings, MCE Holdings No. 2 and MCE Leisure were all incorporated in the Philippines and were
registered with the SEC on August 13, 2012, August 22, 2012 and August 30, 2012, respectively. The
primary purpose of MCE Holdings and MCE Holdings No. 2 is investment holding, while the primary
purpose of MCE Leisure is to develop and operate tourist facilities, including hotel casinc
entertainment complexes with hotel, retail and amusement areas and themed development
components, which were further expanded to include casino gaming activities.

Activities of MCE Holdings Group

On July 5, 2012, MCE, through its indirect subsidiary, MPEL Projects Limited, entered into a
memorandum of agreement (the “MOA") with the Philippine Parties for the development of City of
Dreams Manila. Further to the MOA, on October 25, 2012, the MCE Holdings Group i) together with
certain of its affiliated companies, entered into a closing arrangement agreement (the "Closing
Arrangement Agreement”); and ii) entered into the Cooperation Agreement and other related
arrangements with the Philippine Parties. MCE Leisure also entered into the lease agreement on
October 25, 2012 with Belle for City of Dreams Manila (the “Lease Agreement”).

On March 13, 2013, the date on which the conditions fo closing under the Closing Arrangement
Agreement were fulfilled, or waived, the Cooperation Agreement and the Lease Agreement became

18



effective, with minor changes to the original terms. in addition, the MCE Holdings Group and the
Philippine Parties entered into the operating agreement on March 13, 2013 (the “Operating
Agreement’), pursuant to which MCE Leisure has been granted the exclusive right to manage,
operate and control City of Dreams Manila.

Pre-Operating Results

The following will be the key performance indicators of the Group when it starts commercial operations
in 2014:

a. Adjusted EBITDA: Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, pre-opening
costs, development costs, property charges and others, share-based compensation, and other
non-operating income and expenses.

b. Revenue Growth: Measures the percentage change in revenue over a period of time. It is
regularly monitored on a per product and per client basis.

¢. Net Income: Measures the profitability of the Group.

d. Basic Earnings Per Share: Measures how much a stockholder earns in the Net Income of the
Group. Basic Eamnings per share is calculated by dividing Net Income by the weighted number
of common shares issued and outstanding during a particular period of time.

e. Rolling chip volume: the amount of non-negotiable chips wagered and lost by the rolling chip
market segment.

f. Rolling chip win rate: rolling chip table games win as a percentage of rolling chip volume.

g. Mass market table games drop: the amount of table games drop in the mass market table
games segment,

h.  Mass market table games hold percentage: mass market table games win as a percentage of
mass market table games drop.

i Table games win: the amount of wagers won net of wagers lost on gaming tables that is
retained and recorded as casino revenues.

j- Gaming machine handle: the total amount wagered in gaming machines.

k. Gaming machine win rate: gaming machine win expressed as a percentage of gaming
machine handle.

I Average daily rate: calculated by dividing total room revenues (less service charges, if any) by
total rooms occupied, i.e., average price of occupied rooms per day.

m. Qccupancy rate: the average percentage of available hotel rooms occupied during a period.

n. Revenue per available room, or REVPAR: calculated by dividing total room revenues (less
service charges, if any) by total rooms available, thereby representing a combination of hotel
average daily room rates and occupancy.

These performance indicators are not applicable as of December 31, 2013 when the Corporafion and
the Group had no commercial operations.

Pre-Operating Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Period from

August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012

As a result of the foregoing discussion on group organizational changes and asset acquisition
transaction, the MCE Holdings Group was deemed to be the accounting acquirer for accounting
purposes. The acquisition was accounted for similar to a reverse acquisition following the guidance
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provided by the PFRS. In a reverse acquisition, the legal parent, MCP is identified as the acquiree for
accourniting purposes because based on the substance of the transaction, the legal subsidiaries, the
MCE Holdings Group are adjudged to be the entities that gained control over the legal parent.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of MCP have been prepared as a continuation of the
financial statements of the MCE Holdings Group. The MCE Holdings Group has accounted for the
acquisition of MCP on December 19, 2012, which was the date when MCE, through MCE Investments
and MCE (Philippines) Investments No.2 Corporation ("MCE Investments No.2"), acquired control of
MCP.

The comparative financial information for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012 has
been presented in the consolidated financial statements as all companies within the MCE Holdings
Group were incorporated on or after August 13, 2012,

The following table shows a summary of the pre-operating results of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012 as derived from the
accompanying consolidated financial statements:

For the Period
For the Year from August 13,
Ended December | 2012 to December
31, 2013 31,2012 % Change
Revenue (F000) 52,952 - N/A
Operating costs and expenses (P000) (1,157,346) (49,471) 2239%
Non-operating expenses, net (P000) {1,359,023) (315) 431336%
Net loss (P000) (2,463,417) {49,786) 4848%
Basic/diluted loss per share (P) {0.74) (0.12) 517%

We are currently in the development stage, and as a resuit, there is no revenue and cash provided by
our intended operations, except for a management fee income from MCE as discussed below.
Accordingly, the activities reflected in our consolidated statements of comprehensive income mainly
relate to operating costs and expenses and non-operating income {expenses) including general and
administrative expenses, pre-opening costs, development costs, amortization of contract acquisition
costs, depreciation, interest income, interest expenses — net of capitalized interest, foreign exchange
loss — net and other income. Consequently, as is typical for a development stage company, we have
incurred losses to date and expect these losses to continue to increase untii we commence
commercial operations with the planned opening of City of Dreams Manila which is expected later this
year.

Consolidated comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2013 was R2,463.4 million, an
increase of P2,413.6 million, or 4,848%, from B49.8 million for the period from August 13, 2012 to
December 31, 2012, which primarily related o pre-opening costs, general and administrative
expenses, developments costs, as well as the interest expenses (net of capitalized interest) as a result
of continuous development of City of Dreams Manila.

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to B53.0 million, primarily represented the
reimbursement for the share based compensation costs for certain MCP directors recharged to MCE.

Operating costs and expenses

Total operating costs and expenses were B1,157.3 million for the vear ended December 31, 2013,
representing an increase of R1,107.8 million, from P49.5 million for the period from August 13, 2012 to
December 31, 2012. The increase in operating costs was attributable to the continuous development of
City of Dreams Manila.

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to P153.0
million, primarily consisted of documentary stamp duty and SEC filing fee related to increase in share
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capital of the MCE Holdings Group companies, legal and other professional fees incurred for the
project funding.

Amortization of contract acquisition costs for the year ended December 31, 2013 of B43.4 million
represented the consideration paid to Belle for termination of various agreements with a third party in
accordance with the Closing Arrangement Agreement and this amount is amortized over the term of
the Operating Agreement. There was no amortization of contract acquisition costs for the pericd from
August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012.

Development costs for the year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to R95.1 million, as compared to
P45.9 million for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, primarily consisted of legal
and other professional fees incurred during the closing of the Closing Arrangement Agreement as well
as certain regulatory fees.

Pre-opening costs were R857.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily related to staff
cost, consultancy fee in consideration for share awards, project management fee charged from MCE
or its subsidiaries, share-based payments, land rental charges on the Lease Agreement with Belle as
well as legal and other professional fee for pre-operating corporate matters incurred during the vear.
There were no pre-opening costs for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012.

Non-operating expenses, net

Interest income of P54.5 million represented the bank interest income mainly generated from net
proceeds from the Placing and Subscription Transaction for the Offer and exercise of the Over-
allotment Option. The increase was primarily driven by the increase in bank balances as a result of the
aforesaid funding activities and a full year interest income.

Interest expenses (net of capitalized interest) of B1,316.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 mainly represented the interest on obligation under finance lease in relation to a Lease
Agreement of the building with Belie, effective from-March 13, 2013.

Foreign exchange loss — net of R112.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 mainly arrived
from the translation of foreign currency denominated payables at the year end closing rate. The
increase of P111.8 million from R0.4 million for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31,
2012, was primarily due to the depreciation of Philippine Peso against H.K. Doliar and U.S. Dollar and
the increase in foreign currency denominated payables as at December 31, 2013 when compared to
the balance as at December 31, 2012.

Trends, Events or Uncertainties Affecting Recurring Revenues and Profits

Upon commencement of the Group’s intended business and operation, the Group will be exposed to a
number of trends, events and uncertainties, which can affect its recurring revenues and profits, These
include levels of general economic activity, as well as certain cost items, such as operating cost, labor,
fuel and power. The Group will collect revenues and pay expenses in various currencies and the
appreciation and depreciation of other major currencies against the Philippine peso may have a
negative impact on the Group’s reported levels of revenues and profits.

Financial Condition and Balance Sheet

There were certain significant changes in the consolidated balance sheet of the Corporation as of
December 31, 2013 versus December 31, 2012:

i) Upon the Lease Agreement becoming effective on March 13, 2013, the Group accounted for
the lease of certain of the building structures as finance lease assets and obligation under
finance lease (current and non-current) at a total amount of B11.8 billion. In addition, the
Group also capitalized contract acquisition costs of 1.1 billion in accordance with the closing
arrangement as detailed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements for details.

ii)  Under the Provisional License granted by PAGCOR, it is a requirement that the Group should
set up an escrow account with a maintaining balance of US$50.0 million until the completion
of City of Dreams Manila. For details, please refer to Note 11 to the consolidated financial
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statements.

i} Reverse acquisition accounting upon completion of asset acquisition transaction on March 20,
2013.

iv) On Aprii 8, 2013, MCP sold ali of its treasury shares, representing 150,435,404 common
shares to third parties at B14.2 per share.

v)  On April 24, 2013, MCP and MCE Investments completed the placing and subscription
fransaction.

vi) On May 23, 2013, the stabilizing agent exercised the over-allotment option and subscribed for
36,024,600 common shares of MCP with a par value of B1.00 per share, at the offer price of P
14.00 per share,

vii)  On June 28, 2013, MCP granted to certain directors and employees of MCE and MCP and
other eligible participants of the share incentive plan of MCP (the “Share Incentive Plan") (i)
share options (the “MCP Share Options”) to subscribe for a total of 120,826,336 common
shares of P1.00 each of MCP (the "MCP Shares”) and (i) restricted shares in respect of a
fotal of 60,413,167 MCP Shares (the “MCP Restricted Shares”) pursuant to the Share
Incentive Plan. The total number of underlying MCP shares related to the MCP Share Options
and MCP Restricted Shares granted is 181,239,503 MCP shares. Please refer to Note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements for detais.

viii) On July 31, 2013, MCE Leisure and Belle signed an addendum to the Lease Agreement to
reduce the monthly rental payments with total discount for each twelve month rolling period,
the first twelve month period beginning from March 1, 2013, shall be subject to a cap of the
Philippine peso equivalent of US$1.0 million for each twelve (12) month period.

The consclidated balance sheet of the Corporation as of December 31, 2013 with variance of plus or
minus 5% against of December 31, 2012 (#) is discussed, as foliows:

In thousands of Philippine peso, except % %

change data December 31, 2013 | December 31, 2012 # | Change
Current assets 8,996,407 1,152,723 680%
Noncurrent assets 19,146,328 97,709( 19495%
Total assets 28,142,735 1,250,432 2151%
Current liabilities 3,481,369 192,790 1706%
Noncurrent liabilities 11,327,675 - N/A
Total liabilities 14,809,044 192,790 7581%
Equity ' 13,333,691 1,057,642 1161%

# The financial information as of December 31, 2012 presented in the consolidated financial

statements as of December 31, 2013 are retroactively adjusted to reflect the reverse acquisition
accounting.

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents increased by R7,447.8 million, which is the net result of the net proceeds
from issuance of share capital (mainly the placing and subscription transaction, over-allotment option
and sales of 150,435,404 treasury shares), partially offset by the payments made for the capital and
operating expenditures during the year presented.

Prepayments and other current assets increased by F390.4 million, which was primarily due to the

increase in (i} input VAT mainly arising from the payments of constructions costs and rental expenses
and (ji) current portion of prepaid rent.
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Noncurrent assefs

Property and equipment increased by P14,955.7 million, mainly due to the recognition of the leased
building structures as finance lease assets of B11,820.4 million and additional capital expenditures
mainly in construction in progress of B2,684.7 million incurred during the year ended December 31,
2013. The depreciation will commence when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Contract acquisition costs increased by R961.7 million net of amortization for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Other intangible assets represented the license fees incurred for right to use of certain trademarks for
City of Dreams Manila.

Other noncurrent assets increased by B895.8 million primarily as a result of recognition of advance
payment and deposit for property and equipment of R678.5 million, noncurrent portion of prepaid rent
of P106.0 million and rental and security deposits of 90.3 million under the Lease Agreement.

Restricted cash increased by B2,226.7 million due to the escrow account as required under the
Provisional License granted by PAGCOR.

Current liabilities

Accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities increased by B837.9 million which is
mainly related to increase in accruals for fit-out construction costs by R701.1 million, increase in
accruals for legal and other professional fees of R59.4 million as well as increase in accruals for staff
costs of P44.0 million.

Current portion of obligations under finance lease comprised of the building lease portion as discussed
above and the finance lease for information technology infrastructure service. It represented the lease
payments that are due within one year.

Amounts due to affiliated companies, ultimate holding company and immediate holding company
increased by P1,236.5 million, which primarily resulted from project management fee and payroll
recharged from affiliates/holding companies as well as funds advance from MCE Investments during
the year ended December 31, 2013. Please refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
for nature and details of the related party transactions for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Noncurrent liabilities

Non-current portion of obligations under finance lease increased by R11,268.3 million. i represented
the lease payments that are due more than one (1) year.

Deferred rent liability represented the difference between the amount of effective rent on leased land
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and actual payment made during
the year ended December 31, 2013. The amount is not expected to be reversed within one {1) year.

Equity

Capital stock and additional paid-in capital increased by P3,863.8 million and R14,663.8 million,
respectively, mainly in relation to the subscription of 2,846,595,000 shares by MCE Investments, sale
of treasury shares, the completion of the placing and subscription transaction of 981 ,183,700 common
shares, followed by exercise of over-allotment option of 36,024,600 common shares.

Share-based compensation reserve increased by £278.2 million mainly due to the grant of Share
Incentive Plan as mentioned in significant changes of financial condition above.

Equity reserve consisted of the net difference between the cost of MCP to acquire the MCE Holdings

Group and the legal capital of the latter at the date of reverse acquisition plus the retained earnings of
MCP as of December 19, 2012, the date when MCP was acquired by MCE.
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Deficit increased by P2,463.4 million to B2,513.2 million as of December 31, 2013 from R49.8 million
as of December 31, 2012 which was solely due to the net loss recognized during the vear.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The table below shows the Group’s consolidated cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013
and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012:

For the Year | Forthe Period
Ended from August %
December 31, 13, 2012 to Change
2013 December 31,
2012

In thousands of Philippine peso, except % change
data
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities {771,474) 1,472 -52510%
Cash used in investing activities (13,471,049) (1,664)| 809458%
Net cash provided by financing activities 21,689,092 8,310 260900%
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash 1,251 39 3108%
equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,447,820 8,157 91206%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,152,022 1,143,865 1%
year/period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period 8,599,842 1,152,022 646%

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 646% as of December 31, 2013 compared to December 31,

2012 mainly due to the net effect of the following:

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group registered negative cash flow from
operating activities of P771.5 million primarily due to a continuous development of City of
Dreams Manila as discussed aforesaid sections.

Cash used in investing activities amounted to B13,471.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2013 and which primarily include: (i) cash used in reverse acquisition of B7,198.6 million
as detailed in Notes 1(c) and 2 to the consolidated financial statements; (ii) increase in
restricted cash of B2,226.7 million for escrow account as discussed in the foregoing; (i)
capital expenditure payments of R2,059.7 million; (iv) contract acquisition cost to Belle of R
1,128.8 million as well; and (v) advance payment and deposit for acquisition of property and
equipment of R678.7 million.

Net cash provided by financing acfivities during the year mainly represented: (i) net proceeds
from issuance of share capital of R16,685.9 million; (i) net proceeds from capital stock
issuance of legal subsidiary of F2,843.8 million; (iii) proceeds from sale of treasury shares of P
2,136.2 million; (iv) fund transfer from MCE Investments of R811.4 million; partially offset by (v)
repayments of obligations under finance lease of R785.0 million.

The table below shows the Group's capital resources as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

As of As of
December | December 31,
31,2013 2012 % Change
In thousands of Phifippine peso, except % change
data
Equity 13,333,691 1,057,642 1161%
Total Capital 13,333,691 1,057,642 1161%

Except for the obligations under finance lease, no other material noncurrent liability was incurred for
the year ended December 31, 2013 and the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012. Total
capital increased by 1,161% to #13,333.7 million as of December 31, 2013 from B1,057.6 million as of
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December 31, 2012. The increase was the result of (i) the increase in capital stock and additional
paid-in capital of P18.8 billion upon the completion of the share subscription transaction, the sales of
treasury shares, the placing and subscription transaction and exercise of the over-allotment option as
discussed above; (i) recognition of share-based compensation of B278.2 million; partially offset by (iii)
the net ioss of P2,463.4 million during the year and (iv) the net difference between the cost of MCP to
acquire MCE Holdings Group and the legal capital of the |atter at the date of reverse acquisition plus
the retained earnings of MCP as of December 19, 2012, the date when MCP was acquired by MCE.

Risks Related to Financial Instruments

The Group has financial assets and financial liabilities such as cash and cash equivalents, security
deposit, accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities, amounts due to affiliated
companies, amount due to ultimate holding company and amount due to immediate holding company
which arise directly from its operation.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments as of and for the year ended December
31, 2013 are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk. Management
reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks. Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements for detail.

Other Financing and Liquidity Matters

We may obtain financing in the form of, among other things, equity or debt, including additional bank
loans or high yield, mezzanine or other debt, or rely on our operating cash flow to fund the
development of City of Dreams Manila. We are a growing company with significant financial needs.
We expect to have significant capital expenditures in the future as we continue to develop City of
Dreams Manila.

We have relied and intend in the future to rely on our operating cash flow and different forms of
financing to meet our funding needs and repay our indebtedness, as the case may be.

The timing of any future debt and equity financing activities will be dependent on our funding needs,
our development and construction schedule, the availability of funds on acceptable terms to us, and
prevailing market conditions. We may carry out activities from fime to time to strengthen our financial
position and ability to better fund our business expansion. Such activities may include refinancing
existing debt, monetizing assets, sale-and-leaseback transactions or other similar activities.

The total budget for the City of Dreams Manila project up to the time of opening is estimated to be
approximately US$680.0 million, consisting of funds primarily for capital expenditures, working capital
for initial opening and other pre-opening expenses. However, this estimate may be revised depending
on a range of variables, including the final design and development plans, funding costs, the
availability of financing on terms acceptable to us, and prevailing market conditions.

MCP raised $16,685.9 million in net proceeds from the issuance of share capital, including the placing
and subscription transaction on the PSE completed in April, 2013 and the over-allotment option, and
completed the issuance of P15 billion aggregate principal amount of senior notes due 2019 (the
“Senior Notes") in January 2014.

The development of City of Dreams Manila may be subject to further financing and a number of other
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Qur investment plans are preliminary and subject to
change based upon the execution of our business plan, the progress of our capital projections, market
conditions and outlock on future business.

As of December 31, 2013, we had capital commitments contracted for, but not provided, totaling F
4,037.8 million mainly for the fit-out for City of Dreams Manila. For further details for our commitments
and contingencies, please refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this annual report.

On December 19, 2013, MCE Leisure priced its Senior Notes, at par, with an interest rate of 5.00%
per annum and a maturity date of January 24, 2019. The issuance of the Senior Notes was completed
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on January 24, 2014, We intend to use the net proceeds from the issuance of Senior Notes for the
development of City of Dreams Manila.

The Senior Notes will be general obligations of MCE Leisure, will rank equally with all of MCE
Leisure’s existing and future senior indebtedness (save and except for any statutory preferences or
priority) and will rank senior to all of MCE Leisure’s existing and future subordinated indebtedness.
The Senior Notes will be guaranteed by MCE, MCP and all present and future direct and indirect
subsidiaries of MCP (subject to certain limited exceptions) on a senior basis. In addition, the Notes will
be secured by pledge of shares of all present and future direct and indirect subsidiaries of MCP.
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CAUSES FOR ANY MATERIAL CHANGES FROM PERIOD TO PERIOD OF FS WHICH SHALL
INCLUDE VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF ANY MATERIAL ITEM (5%)

MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands of Philippine peso, except % change data)

December 31

VERTICAL
ANALYSIS

% to Total Assets

HORIZONTAL
ANALYSIS
% of Change In
Prior Year

Gauses of Material Changes

{With 5% as a Threshold)

ASSETS

2013

2012

2013 2012

2013

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalenls

Prepayments ang olher cument assets
Amount dug from a sharehoitler

8,599,842

301,140
5425

1,152,022

M

3% 2%

1% 0%
0% 0%

Theincrease Is atiibuted to the net
result of the net proceeds from
issuance of share capital, partially
offset by ihe paymenis made for the

B46% capital and operating expenditures.

Thelncrease is attributable to the
increase in input VAT and current
portion of prepaid rent as a result of the
contingus development of City of

£55697% Dreams Manila.
A,

Tolal Current Assets

8,996,407

1,152,723

2% 92%

680%

Noncurrent Assats

Properly and equipment

Contract azquisilion costs

Other infangible assets

Other noncurrent assels

Restricted cash

14,985,010

1,020,151

8,698

895,795

2,228 674

39,282

58,427

53% 3%

4% 5%

0% 0%

3% 0%

8% 0%

The increase is allributable to the
conlinuous devefopment of City of
38073% Dreams Manila,

Theincreaseis atifbulable io
cansideration paid to Belle as part of
the clesing condition net with the

1646% amortization charge for the year.

Therincrease represents the ficense
fees incurred for right to use of certain
N/A trademarks for City of Dreams Manila,

The increase is mainly attributable to
the recognition of advance payment of
construclion in progress, deposit for
properly and equipment, noncureent
portion of prepaid rent as well as renta)
and secuity deposits as a result of the
centinuous development of City of

N/A Dreams Manila,

Theincrease is primarily attributable
to the US$50 millien escrow account
as required under Provisicnal License

N/A granted by PAGCOR.

‘Total Noncurrent Assels

19,146,328

97,709

68% 8%

19495%

Total Assets

28,142,735

1,250,432

100%  100%

2151%,
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands of Philippine peso, except % change data)

VERTICAL HORIZONTAL
ANALYSIS ANALYSIS Causes of Material Changes
% of Change in
Decembar 34 % to Total Assets  Prior Year [With 5% as a Thrashold)
2013 2012 2013 2012 M3
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Llabilitles

The increase is primacdly atiributable
1o the increase in acerudls for fit-out
consuttion costs, tegal and other
professional fees, and staff costs,
which were arisen from the continuous

Accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities 918,389 : 80,453 3% B% 1042% development of City of Dreams Manlia.
The increase represents the building
lease portion and the finance lease for
Current portion of ohligations under finance lease infermation technelogy infrastructure
senvce, which became effective during
1,214,187 . - 5% 0% N/A the year.
Amount due fo ultimate holding company 107.787 | 90,434 0% T% 19%
Ameunt due to immediate holding comparyy 887,415 | - 3% 0% N/A The Increase is resulted from project
. managemesnt fee and payroll
recharged from affiliates/holding
companles as well as funds advance
from MCE Invesiments for the
Amounts dug |0 affiiated companles 353,591 ¢ 21,903 1% 2% 1514% development of City of Dreams Manila,
Total Current Liabilities 3,481,369 : 182,790 12% 15% 1706%
Noncurrent Liabllittes

The increase represents the building
lease porfion and the finance jease for
information technology infrastructure
sefvice, which became sffactive during -

Noncurrent portion of obligations under finance lease 11,269,283 - 40% 0% NIA the year.

The increase represents the

difference between the amount of
Creferred rent liabifity 59,392 - 0% 0% WA effective rent and the actual payment,
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 11,327,675 - - 40% 0% BIA
Equity
Capital slock 4,426,303 . 562,500 16% 45% 697%

Theincrease is mainly related to the
subseription of 2,846,535,000 shares
by MCE Investments, sale of treasury
shares, top-up placement of
981,183,700 common shares, folowed
by exercise of over-alistment of

Additional paid-in capital 14,755,430 92,679 53% 8% 15822% 36,024,600 commaon shares.

Theincrease is atfributable to the

Share Incentive Plan granted during
Share-based compensation reserve 278,151 - 1% 0% N/A the year,
Tha amount fepresents. the net
difference between the cost of MCP to
acquire MCE Holdings Group and the
legal capital of the latter at the date of
reverse agquisition plus the retained
Equily reserve (3.613,990) 740,763 -13% 59% -588% earnings of MCP.

The increase is due to the net loss
‘Accumulated deficits {2,513,203} (49,786) 9% 4% 4948% recognized during the year.

The degrease Is atiributable to the
Cost of freasury shares held - (288,514} 0%  -23% -100% sale of reasury shares,
Total Equity 13.333.691 1,057,642 48% 85% 1161%
Total Equlty and Llabilitles 28,142,735 1,250,432 100%  100% 2151%
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands of Philippine peso except % change date and Basic/diluted Loss per Share)

VERTICAL HORIZONTAL
ANALYSIS ANALYSIS Causes of Material Changes
Fer the paricd
Fortha yearended  August 13,2012 % of Change in
Dacembar 31, December 31, % to Revenues Prior Year {With 5% as a Threshold)
2013 2013 201 2013
REVENUE
The increase is atiributable to the
reimbursement of the share
Management fea income compensation ¢ests for certain
62,95 - 100% N/A N/A _divettars recharged ta MCE.
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
The increase Is allributable to the
continuaus development of City of
General and adminisiralive expenses (152,954) (3.551) -289% NA 4207% Dreatns
‘The increase is atlributable to the
continuous develepment of Cily of
Pre-opening {857,782} - -1620% N/A N/A Dreams
The increase is atiribulable 1o the
legal and olher professicnal fees
incurred during the ¢losing of the
Closing Arrangement
Devslopment (95,090} . (45,820) -180% NIA 107% as well as certain regulatory fees.
The increase is attributable to the
amorlization of the consideration
paid to Belle as part of the closing
Amprtization of contract acquisition costs (43,410) ) - -82% NFA N/A condition during the year,
The increase is altributable {o the
increasa in property and equipment
due lo {he continuous development
Depreciation (3,110} - 15% NIA N/A of City of Dreams
Total operating costs and expenses (1,157,346} (49.471) -2186% NiA 2239%
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
The increase is alributable to the
increase in bank balances and full
Interest 54,50 112 103% N/A 48566% year interest
The increasa is aflibutable to the
interest on obligation under finance
Inferest expenses, net of capitalized interest (1,316,877} - -2487% N/A NIA [ease
Theincrease is atlributable to the
depreciaticn of Philippine Peso
against H.K. Dollar and U.S. Dollar
and the increase in foreign currency
Forelgn exchange loss - net {112,185) (427) 212% NfA 26175% denominated
The increase is altributable to the
VAT rgimbursement from rental
Other 15,54 - 29% N/A N/A to
Tatal nan-operaling expenses, net (1,359,023} {315) -2567% NIA 431336%
NET LOSS {2,483,417) (49,786) -4652% N/A 4848%
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 0% NIA NiA
The increase is atlibutable lo the
continuous development of City of
Draams Manila and pre-opening
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (2,463.417) (49,786) -4652% NIA 4848% activities.
Baslc/Dlluted Loss Per Share B (0741 | 10.12) 0%. N/A S17%
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3. Business Development and Corporate History

The Corporation was incorporated and registered as Interphil Laboratories, Inc. with the SEC on
November 6, 1974, primarily to manufacture, process and package drugs, chemicals,
pharmaceuticals and veterinary products.

During the annual stockholders’ and board of directors’ meeting of the Corporation held on July 10,
2008, the Board approved the creation of two new wholly-owned subsidiaries under the Corporation.
The two companies are First Pharma Industries Inc. (later renamed to Interphil Laboratories, Inc.,
‘Interphil’), a toll manufacturing company, and Lancashire Realty Holding Corporation
(*Lancashire”), a realty company. Likewise, resolutions were also passed to: (1) change the name of
interphil Laboratories, Inc., to Manchester International Holdings Unlimited Corporation; (2) change the
name of First Pharma Industries Inc., to Interphil Laboratories, Inc.: and (3) change the primary
purpose of Manchester International Holdings Unlimited Corporation.

The change in name, primary purpose and transfer of assets of the Corporation were approved by the
SEC on November 21, 2008. The operating assets of the Corporation were transferred to Interphil and
the real estate assets to Lancashire. After these transfers, the Corporation was not connected in any
activities other than and in relation with the holding of shares of Interphil and Lancashire.

On December 7, 2012, MCE, through its wholly-owned indirect subsidiaries, MCE Investments and
MCE Investments No.2 entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with the
then major shareholders of MCP, Interpharma Holdings & Management Corporation (“Interpharma”)
and Pharma Industries Holdings Limited (“PIHL") (collectively referred fo as the “Selling
Shareholders”), subject to certain conditions precedent, to acquire from the Selling Shareholders an
aggregate of 93.06% of the issued share capital of MCP (the “Acquisition”).

Simultaneously with the execution of the Acquisition Agreement on December 7, 2012, MCP entered
into i) a deed of assignment with Interpharma in respect of the sale of its ownership interest in its then
wholly-owned subsidiary, Interphil and i) a deed of assignment with Mercator Holdings and
Management Corporation, in respect of the sale of its ownership interest in its then wholly-owned
subsidiary, Lancashire,

The Acquisition was completed on December 18, 2012, MCE, through MCE Investments No.2 and
MCE Investments, acquired 255,270,156 Class A shares (61.95%) and 128,211,204 Class B shares
(31.11%) in MCP, respectively, in aggregate representing 93.06% equity shares of MCP from the
Selling Shareholders.

On February 19, 2013, the sharehalders of MCP approved the declassification of the existing P300
million authorized capital stock of MCP, consisting of 60% Class A shares and 40% Class B shares to
a single class of common stock and the denial of pre-emptive rights and the increase in MCP's
authorized capital stock from P900 million divided into 900 million shares to B5.9 billion divided into 5.9
billon shares with par value of R1.00 per share.

On March 5, 2013, the SEC approved the declassification of the capital stock of MCP to a single class
of common stock and the denial of pre-emptive rights. On April 8, 2013, the SEC also approved the
increase in authorized share capital stock of MCP.

On March 5, 2013, the SEC approved the amendments to the articles of incarporation of the
Corporation for the change of its corporate name from Manchester International Holdings Unlimited
Corporation to Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation and its registered office address from
Canlubang Industrial Estate, Bo. Pittland, Cabuyao, Laguna to 10th Floor, Liberty Center, 104 H.V.
dela Costa St,, Salcedo Village, Makati City, which were approved by the shareholders of MCP on
February 19, 2013.

On March 20, 2013, MCP entered into a subscription and share sale agreement with MCE
Investments under which MCE Investments subscribed for 2,846,595,000 common shares of MCP
with par value of R1.00 per share at a total consideration of R2,846,595,000.00. The share
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subscription transaction, which was subject to the SEC's approval for the increase in MCP's
authorized capital stock as mentioned above, was completed on April 8, 2013,

On April 24, 2013, MCP and MCE Investments completed a placing and subscription transaction,
under which MCE Investments offered and sold in a private placement to various institutional investors
981,183,700 common shares of MCP with a par value of B1.00 per share, at the offer price of R14.00
per share with over-allotment option of up to 117,075,000 common shares of MCP with a par vaiue of
R1.00 per share, at the offer price of P14.00 per share granted to a stabilizing agent.

On May 23, 2013, the stabilizihng agent exercised the over-allotment option and subscribed to
36,024,600 common shares of MCP. MCE Investments then used the proceeds from the offer and
over-allotment option to subscribe to an equivalent number of common shares in MCP at the
subscription price of R14.00 per share.

On June 27, 2013, the Board of Directors of MCP approved the subscription of 40,000,000 common
shares of the unissued capital stock of its wholly-owned subsidiary, MCE Holdings, with a par value of
P1.00 per share, at a total subscription price of P9.5 billion. As of December 31, 2013, MCE, through
MCE Investments and MCE Investments No.2, held an indirect ownership in MCP of 76.38%.

4. Market Price of and Dividends on Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters

Market Information. The following table indicates the high and low trading prices of the Corporation’s
shares for the fiscal years 2012 and 2013 and first quarter of 2014.

HIGH LOW
2014
First Quarter 14.46 12.30
HIGH Low
2013
First Quarter 18.00 12.00
Second Quarter 17.00 7.60
Third Quarter 11.94 7.50
Fourth Quarter 14.46 0.90
CLASS A CLASS B°
2012
First Quarter 217 1.95 2.05 2.05
Second Quarter 2.60 2.32 2.55 2.52
Third Quarter 2.52 2.52 2.56 2,56
Fourth Quarter 14.00 11.00 14.00 10.52

Shareholders. The Corporation has a single class of common shares. As of December 31, 2013:

(a) the percentage ownership of stockholders of record of the total outstanding shares of the
Corporation was 10.55% Filipino and 89.45% Foreign;

{b) the number of shares outstanding of the Corporation is 4,426,303,300; and

(c) the number of shareholders of the Corporation is 436.

% As of March 5, 2013, the shares comprising the existing authorized capital stock of the Corporation, which previously
consisted of Class "A” shares and Class “B” shares, have been declassified to a single class of common shares.
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The following are the Corporation’s top 20 shareholders as of December 31, 2013:

% TO TOTAL
NO. OF SHARES OUTSTANDING
NAME HELD SHARES

1 MCE (Philippines) Investments Limited 2,189,468,796 49.46%
2 | PCD Nominee Corparation (Non-Filipino) 1,769,657,907 39.98%
3 | PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 288,558,267 06.52%
4 [ MCE (Philippines) Investments No.2 Corporation 173,834,268 03.93%
5 | Jose Cuisia 187,500 00.00%
6 | Victor Sy 187,500 00.00%
7 | Lumen Tiaoqui 150,000 00.00%
8 | Leonardo Chua Lian 150,000 00.00%
9 | Josephine T. Willer 118,750 00.00%
10 _} Alexander S. Araneta 116,250 00.00%
11 [ Jose Marcel Enriquez Panlilio 112,500 00.00%
12 | Bernard Ong and/or Conchita Ong 100,000 00.00%
13 | Elena B. Alikpala . 82,500 00.00%
14 | Rosa T. Cabrera 75,000 00.00%
15 | Wilson Lim and/or Jusy Lim 75,000 00.00%
16 { Rafael Uyguanco 75,000 00.00%
17_{ Ramon Cojuangco, Jr. 71,250 00.00%
18 | Mario C. Tan 67,500 00.00%
19 | Van Tan 65,000 00.00%
20 | Judy Tan Reynolds 62,500 00.00%

TOTAL 4,423.215.488 99.93%

Dividends Per Share. No cash dividend was declared for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for
the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, respectively.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction.

Pursuant to the share subscription and sale agreement, the Corporation issued and MCE Investments
subscribed to 2,846,595,000 common shares at the subscription price per share equivalent to the par
value of R1.00 per share out of the increase in authorized capital stock of the Corporation from R900
million divided into 900 million shares to R5.9 billion divided into 5.9 billon shares, which increase in
capital stock was approved by the SEC on March 20, 2013. The subscription of shares pursuant to an
increase in capital stock is an exempt transaction under SRC Rule Section 10.1 (i)-

Furthermore pursuant to the placing and subscription transaction, a total of 981,183,700 shares of
stock were offered and sold by MCE Investments by way of a private placement to various institutional
investors, including the grant of an over-allotment option of up to 117,075,000 shares to a stahilizing
agent. MCE Investments then used the proceeds of the placing transaction to subscribe to an
equivalent number of 981,183,700 shares in the Corporation. The offer and the subscription of new
shares as a result of the placing and subscription transaction is an exempt transaction under SRC
Rule 10.1 (k) and (i).

On February 19, 2013, MCP’s shareholders approved the Share incentive Plan to grant shares and
options to qualified employees, directors, officers and other qualified persons at an exercise price and
vesting periods to be determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, On April
12, 2013, the SEC resolved that the issuance of the 131,578,947 common shares under the plan was
exempt from registration requirements under Section 10.2 of the Securities Regulation Code.

On June 21, 2013, MCP's shareholders approved the amendment of the Share Incentive Plan made in

order to comply with the relevant provisions of HKLR since MCE, an affiliate of the Company, is listed

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The amendments inciude, but not limited to, additional

provisions for compliance with HKLR requirements (i) when awards are granted to “connected
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persons” (as such term is defined under HKLRY); and (i) on restriction on timing of grant of awards.
On June 24, 2013, additional 44,214,138 common shares were granted exemption from registration by
the SEC.

On June 28, 2013, 181,239,503 underlying shares related to shares and options under the Share
Incentive Plan were granted, and MCP has filed a request for exemption for the issuance of the
additional 5,446,418 common shares. On August 12, 2013, additional 5,446,418 common shares were
granted exemption from registration by the SEC.

$. Discussion on Compliance with Leading Practice on Corporate Governance

The Corporation has adopted a Manual of Corporate Governance (*“Manual®) which was filed with and
duly approved by the SEC. In accordance with the provisions of the Manual, the Corporation is
required to assess compliance of its Board of Directors and Management annually. In addition, the
Compliance Officer is required to prepare an annual certification on the Corporation's compliance with
the provisions of the Manual explaining reasons for any deviation. There has been no material
deviation from the Corporation's Manual.

The Corporation recently submitted its Compliance Report on Corporate Governance as required by
the PSE.

The Corporation encourages its directors and management to attend and participate in training

programs and seminars on good corporate governance, to keep themselves abreast with the leading
practices on the matter.
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PART I

PROXY
MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION

(CORPORATE STOCKHOLDERS)

(the “Principal”) hereby nominates, constitutes, and appoints

(the “Proxy”} as proxy to represent the Principal and vote

cammon shares of the capital stock of MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS

CORFORATION (the “Corporation”) at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 19, 2014 at 1:00
pm at The Blue Leaf Filipinas, Belle Avenue, Aseana City, Parafiaque City 1702, at which meeting the
following matters shall be taken up:

1.

2.

Call to Order
Certification of the Existence of Quorum and the Sending of Notices

Approval of the Minutes of the Last Stockholders’ Meetings held on June 21, 2013 and
October 8, 2013

Report of the Chairman or President

Approval of the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation for the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Election of the Members of the Board of Directors
Appointment of External Auditor

Approval of the Further Amendments to the Amended Articles of Incorporation of the
Corporation

Ratification of Actions Taken by the Board of Directors and Officers since the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 21, 2013

10. Other Matters

11. Adjournment

The Proxy is hereby designated to do and perform every legal act and thing whatever requisite or
necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents and purposes as the Stockholder
might or could lawfully do, and confirm alf that the proxy shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue

hereof.

NAME OF CORPORATE STOCKHOLDER

By:

Name:
Position:
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PROXY
MEL.CO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION
(INDIVIDUAL STOCKHCLDER)

1, . of legal age, and with address at

. being a
stockholder of common shares (the "Shares") of the capital stock of MELCO
CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION (the “Corporation”), do hereby name and
appoint as my proxy for the Shares, to represent me at the Annual

Stockholders’ Meeting on May 19, 2014 at 1:00 pm at The Blue Leaf Filipinas, Belle Avenue, Aseana
City, Parafiaque City 1702, at which meeting the following matters shall be taken up:

1. Call to Order
2. Certification of the Existence of Quorum and the Sending of Notices

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Last Stockholders’ Meetings held on June 21, 2013 and
October 8, 2013

4. Report of the Chairman or President

5. Approval of the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation for the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

6. Election of the Members of the Board of Directors
7. Appointment of External Auditor

8. Approval of the Further Amendments to the Amended Articles of Incorporation of the
Corporation

9. Ratification of Actions Taken by the Board of Directors and Officers since the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 21, 2013

10. Other Matters

11. Adjournment
| hereby give and grant unto my said proxy full power and authority to do and perform every legal act
and thing whatever requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents
and purposes as | might or could lawfully do, and confirm all that my said proxy shall lawfully do or

cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Signed on

SIGNATURE OF STOCKHOLDER
OVER PRINTED NAME
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SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set forth
in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in Pasay City on this 24th day of April

2014,
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MELCO CROWN {PHILIPPINES) RESORTS
CORPORATION

By:

MARISSA TOMBCRUZ-ACADEMIA
Corporate $pcretary
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT*S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the
period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, including the additional components lattached
therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes
designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined
the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and, in
its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such examination.

CLARENCE YUK MAN CHUNG
President & Chiirman of the Board

VA4

ADRIAN HSEN BIN AU
Treasurer

Signed this 1 1" day of April 2014
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Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation and
Subsidiaries

Consclidated Financial Statements
December31, 2013 and 2012

and For The Year Ended December 31, 2013
and For The Period From August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012

and

Independent Auditors’ Report




L SyCip Gorres Velayvo & Co.  Tel: (632) 891 0307 BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, '
6760 Ayala Avenue Fax: (632} 819 0872 Decamber 28, 2012, valid until December 31, 2015
1226 Makati City ey.com/ph SEC Accreditation No, 0012-FR-3[(Group A),

Building a better Philippines November 15, 2012, valid until November 16, 2015
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation
Aseana Boulevard cor. Roxas Boulevard

Brgy. Tambo, Paraiiaque City 1701

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Melco Crown (Philippines)
Resorts Corporation and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balancé sheets as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive mcéme statements
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the
period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, and a summary of significant accc'mntmg policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such ‘internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform theaundit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free| from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finangial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for|the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness| of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

AR A

A member firm of Ernet & Young Glokal Limited



Building a better
working world

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all materlal respects, the
financial position of Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation and Subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and their financial performance and their cash flows forj the year ended
December31, 2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012 in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

£ luca,

Roel E. Lucas

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 98200

SEC Accreditation No. 1079-AR-1 (Group A),
March 4, 2014, valid until March 3, 2017

Tax Identification No. 191-180-015

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-95-2014,
January 22, 2014, valid until January 21, 2017

PTR No. 4225185, January 2, 2014, Makati City

April 11, 2014

TR

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATIO A% é
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS L
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data’
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
(Note 2) {Note 2)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 5, 24 and 25) P§,599,842 P1,152,022
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 6) 391,140 701
Amount due from a shareholder (Notes 17, 24 and 25) 5,425 -
Total Current Assets 8,996,40'3% 1,152,723
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment (Note 7) 14,995,010 39,282
Contract acquisition costs (Note 8) 1,020,151 58,427
Other intangible assets (Note 9) 8,698 -
Other noncurrent assets (Note 10) 895,795 -
Restricted cash (Notes 11, 24 and 25) 2,226,674 -
Total Noncurrent Assets 19,146,328 97,709
$28,142,735 B1,250,432
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities
(Notes 12, 24 and 25) £918,389 80,453
Current portion of obligations under finance lease
(Notes 20, 24 and 25) 1,214,187 -
Amount due to ultimate holding company (Notes 17, 24 and 25) 107,787 90,434
Amount due to immediate holding company (Notes 17, 24 and 25) 887,415 -
Amounts due to affiliated companies (Notes 17, 24 and 25) 353,591} 21,903
Total Current Liabilities 3,481,369 192,790
Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent portion of obligations under finance lease
(Notes 20, 24 and 25) 11,268,283 -
Deferred rent liability 59,392 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 11,327,67 5: -
Equity |
Capital stock (Note 13) 4,426,303 562,500
Additional paid-in capital 14,756,430 92,679
Share-based compensation reserve (Note 28) 278,151! -
Equity reserve (Notes 2 and 13) (3,613,9905 740,763
Accumulated deficits (2,513,203) {49,786)
Cost of treasury shares held (Note 13) - (288,514)
Total Equity 13,333,691 1,057,642
P28,142,735 P1,250,432

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND

FOR THE PERIOD FROM AUGUST 13,2012 TO DECEMBER 31, 2012
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

For the Period from

For the Year Ended August 13,2012 to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012
{Note 2) (Note 2)

REVENUE
Management fee income (Note 17) $52,952 B
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses (Note 14) {152,954) (3,551)
Pre-opening costs (Note 15) (857,782) -
Development costs (Note 16) (95,090) (45,920)
Amortization of contract acquisition costs (Note 8) (43,410) -
Depreciation (Note 7) (8,110) -
Total Operating Costs and Expenses (1,157,346) (49,471)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
Interest income (Notes 5) 54,506 112
Interest expenses, net of capitalized interest (Note 20) {1,316,877) -
Foreign exchange loss, net (112,195 (427
Other income 15,543 -
Total Non-operating Expenses, Net {1,359,023) (31%)
NET LOSS (2,463,417) (49,786)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (B2,463,417) (B49,786)
Basic/Diluted Loss Per Share (Note 18) #0.74) #0.12)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SU

BSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND

FOR THE PERIOD FROM AUGUST 13, 2012 TO DECEMBER 31, 2012
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expenses, net of capitalized interest
Consultancy fee in consideration for share awards recognized as
pre-opening costs (Note 15)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain), net
Share-based compensation expenses recognized as pre-opening costs {Note 15)
Contract acquisition costs written off to development costs (Note 16)
Amortization of contract acquisition costs (Note 8)
Depreciation (Note 7)
Amortization of prepaid rent

Operating loss before working capital changes
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in prepayments and other current assets
Increase in other noncurrent assets
Increase in amount due from a shareholder
Increase in amounts due to affiliated companies
Increase in accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities
Increase in deferred rent liability
Increase in amount due to ultimate holding company

Net cash (used in) generated from operations
Interest received

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash used in reverse acquisition (Notes 1(c) and 2)

Increase in restricted cash

Payment for acquisition of property and equipment

Payment for contract acquisition costs

Advance payment and deposit for acquisition of property and equipment
Payment for security deposit

Payment for acquisition of other intangible assets

Cash vsed in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from issuance of share capital (Note 13)

Net proceeds from capital stock issuance of legal subsidiary (Notes 1(¢) and 13)
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares (Note 13)

Increase in amount due to immediate holding company

Repayments of obligations under finance lease

Prepayment of other noncurrent assets

Net cash provided by financing activities

EXFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR/PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR/PERIOD

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the Period from

For the Year Ended | August 13,2012 to
December 31,2013 | December 31, 2012
(Note 2) {Note 2)
(B2,463,417) (B49,786)
(54,506) (112)
1,316,877 =
182,215 -
105,941 (106)
95,936 -
64,721 -
43,410 -
8,110 -
4,407 -
(696,306) (50,004)
(373,696) (172)
(27,784) -
(5,425) -
120,164 -
98,212 29,580
55,392 -
6,929 21,956
(818,514) 1,360
47,040 112
(771,474) 1,472
{7,198,590) -
(2,226,674 -
(2,059,683) (1,664}
(1,128,768) -
(678,661) -
(175,599) -
(3,074) -
(13,471,049) (1,664)
16,685,943 -
2,843,837 8,310
2,136,183 -
811,405 -
(785,003) -
(3,273) -
21,689,092 8,310
1,251 39
7,447,820 8,157
1,152,022 1,143,865
8,599,842 P1,152,022

NG RD



MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

1. Organization and Business
(a) Corporate Information

Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation (herein referred to as “MCP” or the “Parent
Company™) is incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The shares of stock of the Parent Company are publicly
traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (the “PSE”).

The Parent Company is engaged in acquiring investments and securities. Its principal place of
business is the Philippines. On March 5, 2013, the SEC approved the amendments to the articles
of incorporation of the Parent Company for change of its corporate name from Manchester
International Holdings Unlimited Corporation to Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation
and its registered office address from Canlubang Industrial Estate, Bo. thtland Cabuyao, Laguna
to 10th Floor, Liberty Center, 104 H.V. dela Costa St., Salcedo Village, Makati City, which were
approved by the stockholders of MCP on February 19, 20]3

On July 25, 2013, the SEC further approved the amendments to the articles of ilncorporation of the
Parent Company to include provision of financing to its group companies in its primary purpose
and further change of its registered office address to Aseana Boulevard cor)! Roxas Boulevard,
Brgy. Tambo, Parafiaque City 1701, which were approved by the stockholders of MCP on
June 21, 2013,

On December 19, 2012, immediately after the Acquisition Transaction as disclosed in Note 1(b),
the ultimate holding company of the Parent Company is Melco Crown Entertainment Limited
(referred to as “MCE”), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands \with its American
depository shares are traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market in the United States of
America and its ordinary shares are traded on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the Pelople’s Republic of
China (“Hong Kong™).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorlzed for issue in
accordance with a resolution by the Board of Directors (“BOD™) on April 11, 2014,

(b) Change in Capital Structure and Ownership of MCP

On December 7, 2012, MCE, through its wholly-owned indirect subsidiaries, MCE (Philippines)
Investments Limited (“MCE Investments™) and MCE (Philippines) Investments No.2 Corporation
(“MCE Investments No.2”), entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
with the then major shareholders of MCP, Interpharma Holdings and Management Corporation
(“Interpharma”) and Pharma Industries Holdings Limited (collectively referred to as the “Selling
Shareholders™), subject to certain conditions precedent, to acquire from the Selling Shareholders
an aggregate of 93.06% of the issued share capital of MCP (the “Acquisition”)

N



MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SU

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

BSIDIARIES

1. Organization and Business - continued

(b) Change in Capital Structure and Ownership of MCP - continued

Simultanecusly with the execution of the Acquisition Agreement on December 7, 2012, MCP
entered into i) a deed of assignment with Interpharma in respect of the sale of its ownership
interest in its then wholly-owned subsidiary, Interphil Laboratories, Inc. and ii) a deed of

assignment with Mercator Holdings and Management Corporation, in respec
ownership interest in its then wholly-owned subsidiary, Lancashire Realty Hold

t of the sale of its

ing Corporation.

The Acquisition was completed on December 19, 2012, MCE, through MCE Investments No.2
and MCE Investments acquired 255,270,156 Class A shares (61.95%) and 128 211,204 Class B

shares (31.11%) in MCP, respectively, in aggregate representing 93.06% equ
from the Selling Shareholders (the “Acquisition Transaction™).

On December 27, 2012, MCE Investments sold 20,191,100 Class B shares in
third party.

On February 19, 2013, the stockholders of MCP approved the declassificat
BG00,000 authorized capital stock of MCP, consisting of 60% Class A shares
shares to a single class of commeon stock and denial of pre-emptive rights a
MCP’s authorized capital stock to £5,900,000 divided into 5.9 billion shares w

ity shares of MCP

MCP (4.9%) to a

on of the existing
and 40% Class B
ind the increase in
ith par value of B1

per share from authorized capital stock of 900,000 divided into 900 million shares with par

value of B1 per share.

On March 5, 2013, the SEC approved the declassification of the capital stock
class of common stock and denial of pre-emptive rights. On April §, 2013, the
the increase in authorized share capital stock of MCP.

On March 20, 2013, MCP entered into a subscription and share sale agreement
and Share Sale Agreement”) with MCE Investments, under which MCE Inve

of MCP to a single
SEC also approved

(the “Subscription
stments subscribed

for 2,846,595,000 common shares of MCP at par value of 1 per share at total consideration of

P2,846,595 (the “Share Subscription Transaction™). The Share Subscription

[ . .
Transaction which

was subject to the SEC’s approval for the increase in MCP’s authorized capital stock as

mentioned above, was completed on April 8, 2013.

On April 8, 2013, MCP sold all of its treasury shares, representing 150,435,404 common shares to

third parties at B14.2 per share.

Iy
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(Ir thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

1. Organization and Business - continued

(b) Change in Capital Structure and Ownership of MCP - continued

(©)

On April 24, 2013, MCP and MCE Investments completed a placing and subscription transaction
(the “Placing and Subscription Transaction™), under which MCE Investments offered and sold in
a private placement to various institutional investors of 981,183,700 common shares of MCP with
par value of B1 per share, at the offer price of 214 per share (the “Offer”). In ¢onnection with the
Offer, MCE Investments granted an over-allotment option (the “Over—allotmerit Option™) of up to
117,075,000 common shares of MCP with par value of 1 per share, at the of{er price of P14 per
share to a stabilizing agent (the “Stabilizing Agent”). MCE Investments then' used the proceeds
from the Offer to subscribe to an equivalent number of common shares in MCP, at the subscription

price of 214 per share.

On May 23, 2013, the Stabilizing Agent exercised the Qver-allotment Option [and subscribed for
36,024,600 common shares of MCP with par value of Bl per share, at the offer price of B14 per
share. MCE Investments then used the proceeds from the QOver-allotment Option to subscribe to
an equivalent number of common shares in MCP at the subscription price of 14 per share.

After the series of transactions as above and as of December 31, 2013, MCE Investments became
the immediate holding company of MCP.

Subsidiaries of MCP and Group Reorganization

Before the Asset Acquisition Transaction as described below, MCE Investmen
subscriber shares with par value of B1 per share of MCE Holdings (Philip
(herein referred to as “MCE Holdings”) at inception date.

ts holds 8,310,000
pines) Corporation

On February 18, 2013, the SEC

approved the increase in authorized capital stock of MCE Holdings to 220

0,000 divided into

200,000,000 common shares with par value of B1 per share from authorizeld capital stock of
33,240 divided into 33,240,000 common shares with par value of B1 per share. On February 19,
2013, MCE Investments subscribed additional 139,584,500 common shares jof MCE Holdings
with par value of Bl per share at total consideration of 82,845,931 (the “Additional Subscription
Transaction”). Immediately after the Additional Subscription Transaction, [MCE Investments
holds 147,894,500 issued and outstanding common shares of MCE Holdings with par value of Bl
per share.

On March 20, 2013, pursuant to the terms of the Subscription and Share Sale Agreement, MCP
entered into a deed of assignment with MCE Investments, which MCP acquired all equity
interests of MCE Investments in MCE Holdings, consisting of 147,89:4,500 issued and
outstanding common shares with a par value of Bl per share as of March 20, 2013, at a
consideration of 7,198,590 (the “Asset Acquisition Transaction™). MCE Holdings holds 100%
direct ownership interests in MCE Holdings No. 2 (Philippines) Corporation (herein referred to as
“MCE Holdings No. 2”), which in turn holds 100% direct ownership interes{s in MCE Leisure
(Philippines) Corporation (herein referred to as “MCE Leisure™) (coIlectivc-l:ly referred to the
“MCE Holdings Group™). As a result of the Asset Acquisition Transactio'n, MCE Holdings

Group became wholly-owned subsidiaries of MCP.

J
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

1. Organization and Business - continued
(c) Subsidiaries of MCP and Group Reorganization - continued
On June 27, 2013, MCP and the MCE Holdings Group underwent the following transactions:

1)  MCP subscribed additional 40,000,000 common shares of MCE Holdings with par value of
B1 per share at total consideration of £9,500,000;

ii) MCE Holdings subscribed additional 40,000,000 common shares of MCE Holdings No. 2
. with par value of 21 per share at total consideration of £9,500,000; and
iif) MCE Holdings No. 2 subscribed additional 40,000,000 common shares of MCE Leisure with
par value of Bl per share at total consideration of £9,500,000.

After the series of transactions as above and as of December 31, 2013, MCP’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries included MCE Holdings, MCE Holdings No. 2 and MCE Leisure ({ogether with MCP
collectively referred to as the “Group™). MCE Holdings, MCE Holdings No. 2 and MCE Leisure
were all incorporated in the Philippines and were registered with the SEC on| August 13, 2012,
August 22, 2012 and August 30, 2012, respectively. The pnmaly purpose of I\I/ICE Holdings and
MCE Holdings No. 2 is investment holding and the primary purpeose of MCE Leisure is fo
develop and operate tourist facilities, including hotel casino entertainment complexes with hotel,
retail and amusement areas and themed development components and was further amended to
engage in casino gaming activities.

(d) Activities of MCE Holdings Group

On July 5, 2012, MCE, through its indirect subsidiary, MPEL Projects Limited, entered into a
memorandum of agreement (the “MOA™) with SM Investments Corporation, SM Land, Inc., SM
Hotels and Conventions Corporation, SM Commercial Properties, Inc. and [SM Development
Corporation (collectively, the “SM Group”), Belle Corporation (“Belle”) and PremiumLeisure
and Amusement, Inc. (“PLAI”) (collectively, the “Philippine Parties™) for the development of an
integrated resort project located within Entertainment City, Manila comprising a casino, hotel,
retail and entertainment complex, which was subsequently branded “City of Dreams Manila”
upon the execution of a trademark licensing agreement signed between MCP and MCE (IP)
Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of MCE, on October 9, 2013. Further to the MOA on October 25,
2012, MCE Heldings Group i) together with certain of its affiliated compar:lies entered into a
closing arrangement agreement (the “Closing Arrangement Agreement™); and ii) entered into a
cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) and other related arrangements with the
Philippine Parties; and MCE Leisure entered into a lease agreement (the “]_lease Agreement”)
with Belle, for City of Dreams Manila. On March 13, 2013, the date on wh:ch the conditions to
closing under the Closing Arrangement Agreement were fulﬁlled or waived (the “Closing™), the
Cooperation Agreement and the Lease Agreement became effective, with minor changes to the
original terms. In addition, MCE Holdings Group and the Philippine Parties entered into an
operating agreement (the “Operating Agreement”™) on March 13, 2013, pursua'mt to which MCE
Leisure has been granted the exclusive right to manage, operate and control City of Dreams
Manila. Details of these agreements are further discussed in Note 22,

R
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

1. Organization and Business - continued

(e} Provisional License

)

Basis of Preparation

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

On December 12, 2008, the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (“PAGCOR™) issued
a provisional license (the “Provisional License”) for the development of City of Dreams Manila to
the SM Group and PLAIL. On November 23, 2011, PAGCOR approved the inclusion of Belle as a
licensee under the Provisional License., On Qctober 25, 2012, further to the Cooperation
Agreement as menfioned above, PAGCOR acknowledged the inclusion of, ambngst. others, MCE
Leisure as a co-licensee, as well as the “special purpose entity”, to take effect|as of the effective
date of the Cooperation Agreement, allowing MCE Leisure to be the operator to operate the
casino business and as representative for itself and on behalf of the other co-licensees under the
Provisional License in their dealings with PAGCOR. The Cooperation Agreement became
effective on March 13, 2013, the date on which closing under the Clolsing ‘Arrangement
Agreement dated October 25, 2012 occurred. As a result, MCE Holdings Group and the
Philippine Parties together became co-licensees (the “Licensees™) under the Provisional License
granted by PAGCOR for the establishment and operation of City of Dreams Manila. The
Provisional License, as well as any regular license to be issued to replace it upon satisfaction of
certain conditions, is concurrent with section 13 of Presidential Decree No. 1869 (the “PAGCOR
Charter”), will expire on July 11, 2033. Further details of the terms and commitments under the
Provisional License are included in Note 23(c).

Status of Operations for City of Dreams Manila

The Group and the Philippine Parties are the joint developers of City of Dreams Manila. MCE
Leisure is responsible for the management and operation, as well as for the project’s fit-out,
furniture, fixtures and equipment (including gaming equipment), working capital expenses, non-
real property improvements and personal property of City of Dreams Manila, and Belle is
responsible for construction and maintenance of the building structures of City of Dreams Manila.

City of Dreams Manila is located on an approximately 6.2-hectare site in Entertainment City. As
of December 31, 2013, the construction on the main building structures of Cityj of Dreams Manila
is substantially complete, while the construction of the connecting structures and the fit-out
construction of City of Dreams Manila are ongoing.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchanée for assets. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the functional and presentation
currency of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. All values are rounded |off to the nearest

thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

For statutory reporting purposes, the Parent Company prepares the consolidated financial statements

every 31st of December.

(A
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Basis of Preparation - continued
On March 20, 2013, MCP completed the Asset Acquisition Transaction for acquiring 100%
ownership interests in the MCE Holdings Group with net assets value of P2, 609 589 from MCE
Investments for a consideration of 27,198,590 (see Note 1(c)). Because MCE did not meet the
definition of a business, the MCE Holdings Group was deemed to be the accounting acquirer for
accounting purposes. The acquisition was accounted for similar to a reverse acquiéition following the
guxdance provided by the standard. In a reverse acquisition, the legal parent, MCP| is identified as the
acquiree for accounting purposes because based on the substance of the transactlon the legal
subsidiary, MCE Holdings Group, is adjudged to be the entity that gained control over the legal
parent. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of MCP have been prepared as a
continuation of the financial statements of the MCE Holdings Group. The MCE I—lloldings Group has
accounted for the acquisition of MCP on December 19, 2012, which was the date when MCE through
MCE Investments and MCE Investments No.2 acquired control of MCP (see the Acquisition
Transaction in Note 1(b)).

The comparative financial information for the year ended December 31, 2011 has not been presented
in the consolidated financial statements as all companies within the MCE Holdings Group were
incorporated on or after August 13, 2012 and the effective date which MCE gained|control on MCP as
described above was on December 19, 2012. The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2012 presented in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018 for comparative
purposes, are retroactively adjusted to reflect the legal capital (i.e. the number and type of capital
stock issued, additional paid-in capital and cost of treasury shares held) of MCP. The adjustment,
which is the difference between the capital structure of the MCE Holdings Group and MCP, is
recognized as part of equity reserve in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

Because the consolidated financial statements represent a continuation of the financial statements of
the MCE Holdings Group, except for its capital structure, the consolidation reflects

(a) the consolidated assets and liabilities of the MCE Holdings Group (legal subsidiary/accounting
acquirer) recognized and measured at their pre-combination carrying amounts, not at their
acquisition-date fair values and the assets and liabilities of MCP (legal| parent/accounting
acquiree) recognized and measured at their acquisition-date fair values (Cash and cash equivalents
—P21,143,864; Prepayments and other current assets — B530 and Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities — B45,276);

(b) the combined results of the MCE Holdings Group for full period together with the post-
combination results of MCP from December 19, 2012, the date when MCP was acquired by MCE
through MCE Investments and MCE Investments No.2 (i.e, not those of MCP);|

(c) the total equity is that of the MCE Holdings Group and MCP, but the legal capital would be that
of MCP;

RNERRATIA IMEANu



-7 -

MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Basis of Preparation - continued

(d) any difference between (1) the consolidated net assets of the MCE Holdings Group and MCP, and
(2) the combined results of the MCE Holdings Group for full period togelther with the post-
combination results of MCP from December 19, 2012 and the sum of legal capital of MCP and
the consideration of the Asset Acquisition Transaction, shall be accounted for Ias Equity reserve in
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectlve]y, and

(e) the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the comparative perlod from August 13,
2012 to December 31, 2012 reflects that of the MCE Holdings Group for the iFull period together
with the post-combination results of MCP (i.e. for the period from December 19, 2012 to
December 31, 2012) while the consolidated statement of comprehensive 1r|1come for the year
ended December 31, 2013 reflects that of MCE Holdings Group together with MCP for the full

year.

Reverse acquisition applies only to the consolidated financial statements of

CP. The Parent

Company financial statements will continue to represent MCP as a stand-alone entity as of December

31,2013 and 2012.

Statement of Compliance

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with Philippine

Financial Reporting Standards (“"PFRS”). PFRS includes both standard titles P
Accounting Standards (“PAS™) and Philippine Interpretations based on equiva
from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)
Financial Reporting Standards Council (“FRSC”).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

‘RS and Philippine

lent interpretations
as issued by the

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and cash in banks which are unrestricted as to

withdrawal and use,

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash represents cash in escrow account as required in the Provisional
PAGCOR for the development of City of Dreams Manila.

Financial Assets and Liabilities
Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financijal asset or a financial liability
balance sheets when it becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the instrum

a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition,

done using trade date accounting.

License issued by

in the consolidated
ent. In the case of
as applicable, are

Initial and Subsequent Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instrumelznts are recognized
initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or

received (in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments,
fair value through profit or loss, includes transaction cost.

except for those at

ARSI



-8-

MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Financial Assets and Liabilities - continued
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss or other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the instruments
were acquired or liabilities incurred and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management
determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and approiariate, re-evaluates
this classification at every balance sheet date. The Group has no financial assets lor liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Determination of Fair Value. The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at the
balance sheet date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations|(bid price for long
positions and asking price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. When
current bid and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techmiques. Valuation techniques include net present |value techniques,
comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models,
and other relevant valuation models.

“Day 1" Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1 profit) in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where
unobservable data is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 17 profit amount.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortized cost lllsmg the effective
interest method, less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees and costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or 1m|pa1red, as well as
through the amortization process. Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is
within 12 months from the balance sheet date, otherwise, these are classified as nonlcurrent assets.

SO
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Financial Assets and Liabilities - continued
This category includes cash and cash equivalents (see Note 5), other deposits and re
under prepayments and other current assets and other noncurrent assets (see Notes
due from a shareholder (see Note 17), security deposit included under other non
Note 10) and restricted cash (see Note 11). The carrying values and fair va
receivables are disclosed in Note 25.

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are r

scejvables included
6 and 10), amount
current assets (see
lues of loans and

10t held for trading

or not designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon the inception of the liability. These

include liabilities arising from operations and loans and borrowings.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently meéasured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the liabilities are dereca
through the amortization process. Other financial liabilities are included in ¢

|recognize:d in the
gnized, as well as
urrent liabilities if

maturity is within 12 months from the balance sheet date, otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent

liabilities.

This category includes accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities (see Note 12),
current and noncurrent portion of obligations under finance lease (see Note 20), amount due to
ultimate holding company (see Note 17), amount due to immediate holding company (see Note 17)
and amounts due to affiliated companies (see Note 17). The carrying values and fair values of other
financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 25.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evide
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of|financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event™) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. ObJectwe evidence of 1rnpa1r1|nent may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant ﬁnanc1a1 difficuity,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicdte that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

nce that a financial

||Il|||l|IW|||I)I||il1||I|Ili|l||\llll|l!l!IHHHHIIHWIII
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Impairment of Financial Assets - continued
Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and

receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss Is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of loss shall
be charged to current operations. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans and receivables together with
the associated allowance are written-off at each balance sheet date when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group. The
Group first assesses whether an objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that ai"e not individually
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group' of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an|impairment loss is
or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairmenl! loss is recognized
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the extent that the ca}rying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

* the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

= the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount ofjconsideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

T,
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities - continued
Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is

discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolxdated balance
sheets if, and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recogmzed amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and [settle the liability
simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting agreements and the related assets
and liabilities are presented at gross amounts in the consolidated balance sheets.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods a?d services, or for
administrative purposes, is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value. Property and equipment under
construction are carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses, if any.

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price and any d1rectly attributable
costs in bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intendéd use. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment when that cost|is incurred and the
recognition criteria are met. Property and equipment also include, if any, costs| of dismantlement,
removal or restoration, the obligation for which the entity incurs when it installs or uses the assets.

Property and equipment with a finite useful life is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s
estimated useful life. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Classification Estimated Useful Life

Building 25 years or over the term of the lease agreement,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 to 10 years or over the lease term, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 7 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date, to ensure that the periods and method of
depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economit benefits from the
items of property and equipment.

WA EEEAR M RTA
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Property and Equipment - continued

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying -amount of the
property and equipment as a replacement, if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accurrlmlated depreciation,
amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is credited or charged to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization is charged to current operations.

During the process of design and construction of City of Dreams Manila’ls fit-out under the
Cooperation Agreement, direct and incremental costs related to the design and| construction of the
project’s fit-out, including costs under the design and construction contracts! duties and tariffs,
equipment installation, shipping costs, payroll and payroll-benefit related costs an:d applicable portion
of finance interest cost are capitalized in appropriate categories of property and equipment. The
capitalization of such costs begins when the design and construction of the project’s fit-out starts and
ceases once it is substantially completed or design and construction activity of the project’s fit-out is
suspended for more than a brief period.

Depreciation expense related to capitalized cost of the project’s fit-out is recognized from the time
each asset is placed in service and it will be depreciated over the term of the Operating Agreement or
estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter and tested for impairx'nent if there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired. This may occur at different stages as hotel casino
entertainment complex are completed and opened.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated when the asset is ready for intended use over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when the:re is no reasonable
certainty than ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Capitalization of Interest
Interest incurred on funds used to construct the Group’s casino gaming and entertainment resort

facilities during the active construction period is capitalized. Interest subject to capitalization
primarily includes interest paid or payable on obligations under finance lease. The capitalization of
interest ceases once a project is substantially complete or development activity is Isus;:endeci for more
than a brief period.
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Capitalization of Interest — continued

To the extent that funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
entity shall determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual
borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the year/period less any invest:{nent income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings. If an entity borrows funds generally and uses them for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the entity shall determine the amount lof borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalization rate shall be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings
of the entity that are outstanding during the year/period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

Total interest expense incurred amounted to 1,464,430, of which B147,553 was capitalized for the
year ended December 31, 2013. No interest expense was incurred or capitalized for the period from
August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012.

Intangible Assets
Contract Acquisition Costs. Certain costs incurred by MCE Leisure to obtain various agreements in

its capacity as the sole and exclusive operator and manager of the casino project have been capitalized
in contract acquisition costs. These costs include considerations paid to Belle|for termination of
various agreements with a third party upon completion of the Closing Arrangement Agreement on
March 13, 2013 and the amounts paid to third parties and other directly attributabl\:?, costs in obtaining
the contracts such as legal fees, documentary stamps tax on the agreements and other professional
fees incurred in the contract negotiations.

Upon completion of the Closing Arrangement Agreement and the effective of the Lease Agreement
on March 13, 2013, the portion of the contract acquisition costs incurred in relation to the contract
negotiations classified as operating lease is immediately written off to the development costs (see
Note 16), with the remaining portion incurred in relation to the contract negotiations classified as
building under finance lease is capitalized to the finance lease asset. As of Dece%nber 31, 2013, the
contract acquisition costs, which represents the consideration paid to Belle for terr’nination of various
agreements as mentioned above, is amortized over the term of the Operating Agreement and tested for
impairment if there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Other Intangible Assets. Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, other intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, Other intangible assets are amortized
over its useful life unless its life is determined to be indefinite in which case it is not amortized. The
Group’s finite-lived othér intangiblé assets are amortized over the shorter of its cdntractual term and
estimated useful life and tested for impairment if there is an indication that the othér intangible assets
may be impaired.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and arel recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized. |
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying values of non-financial assets, including property and equipment, contract acquisition
costs and other intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any su'ch indication exists
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or cash-
generatmg units are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable hmount of the asset
is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value is thei amount obtainable
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing partles In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their pr!esent value using a
pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely 1ndependent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs Impairment
loss, if any, is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses, if any, may no longer exist or may have decreased! If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charges are | adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis
over its remaining useful life,

Provisions

Provisions are recogmzed when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructwe) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economlc benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reercts ourrent market assessment of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discoﬁnting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Capital Stock
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred that are

directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds,
net of tax. Proceeds and/or fajr value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recognized as additional paid-in capital.

Equity Reserve

Equity reserve account pertains to the effect of the reverse acquisition discussed in Note 2 under basis
of preparation. The analysis of the equity reserve account is presented in Note 13. |
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Accumulated Deficits
Accumulated deficits represent the Group’s cumulative net losses. Accumulated deficits may also
include effect of changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standards’ transitional
provisions or amendments to the standards.

Treasury Shares
The Parent Company’s equity instruments which are reacquired are classified as treasury shares, and
are deducted from equity at acquisition cost. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Parent
Company’s equity instruments.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Management Fee Income. Revenue from the provision of management services is recognized when
the services are provided.

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis that reflects as the
effective yield on the asset.

Expenses Recognition
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other|than those relating
to distributions to equity participants. Expenses are recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in the year/period these are incurred.

Development Costs
Development costs include costs associated with the Group’s evaluation and pursuit of new business
opportunities, which are expensed as incurred.

Pre-opening Costs
Pre-opening costs, consists primarily of expenses related to new or start-up operation, are expensed as

incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangen'{ent is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to| use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, uniess the term of the rénewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

(c) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or
(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.
Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from| the date when the

change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c} or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

As alessee. Finance leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased asset to the Group, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease! at the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as
finance costs in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For income tax reporting purposes, expenses under operating lease arrangements are treated as
deductible expenses in conformity with the terms of the lease agreements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Group’s financial statements are presented in the Philippine peso, the functional currency of the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
functional currency rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. All
exchange rate differences including those arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different
from those at which these were recorded are recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in the year/period in which the differences arise.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Foreign Currency Transactions - continued
For income tax reporting purposes, exchange gains or losses are treated as
deductible expense in the year/period these are realized,

Income Tax
Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior year/peri

taxable income or

od are measured at

the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The taxirates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheet

date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrymg amounts for

financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
differences, except:

taxable temporary

* where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

of the transaction,

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
unused tax credit and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax

credit and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

= where the deferred tax asset re]atmg to the deductible temporary difference ar:ses from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

md reduced to the
atlow all or part of

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be

recovered.




-18 -

MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Income Tax - continued
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year/period when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the Same taxable entity
and the same tax authority.

Value-Added Tox (“VAT”). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net lof the amount of
VAT, except:

= where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

* receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

‘The net amount of VAT recoverable from the tax authority is included under prepayments and other
current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Loss Per Share
The Group presents basic and diluted loss per share for its common shares,

Basic loss per share is determined by dividing net loss for the year/period by the weighted average
number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year/period. Diluted loss per share is
computed in the same manner, adjusted for the dilutive effect of any potential common shares.

The weighted-average number of common and common equivalent shares used in the calculation of
basic and diluted net loss per share consisted of the following:

For the Period from
For the Year Ended A!ugust 13,2012 to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
used in the calculation of basic net loss per share 3,312,053,436 412,064,596

Incremental weighted-average number of common shares
from assumed vesting of restricted shares and exercise of
share options - -

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
used in the calculation of diluted net loss per share 3,312,053,436 412,064,596
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(In thousands of Philippine peso, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Loss Per Share - continued

For the year ended December 31, 2013, 116,144,153 outstanding share options and 58,072,076
outstanding restricted shares as of December 31, 2013 were excluded from the computation of diluted
net loss per share as their effect would have been anti-dilutive. For the period fro:m August 13, 2012
to December 31, 2012, there were no potential dilutive common shares that would have a dilutive

effect on basic loss per share.

Share-based Compensation Expenses

The Group issued restricted shares and share options under its share incentive p
ended December 31, 2013.

The Group measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for
instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award, while an award of

an during the year

an award of equity

equity instruments

issued to consultants in exchange for services are measured at the fair values of services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the services received are measured

by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The cost of
recognized over the service period. Compensation is attributed to the periods of as

ervices received is
sociate service and

such expense is being recognized on an accelerated basis over the requisite service period for each

Separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in-substance, multtple awards,

portion is treated as a separate grant, as each portion has a different vesting period.

Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant, with such estimate updated periodica

Each

lly and with actual

forfeitures recognized currently to the extent they differ from the estimate. When the share options

are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
recognized in share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to retained
awarded shares are not vested or are forfeited during the vesting period, the

amount previously
profits. When the
amount prev10usly

recognized in share-based compensation reserve will be recognized as income immediately in profit

or loss.

Further information on the Group’s share-based compensation arrangement is inclu

Contingencies

ded in Note 28.
I

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. ’I:‘hese are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow

of economic benefits is probable.

Segment Reporting

a
|

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments, which operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker to make decisions about how resources are to be allocated to each of the segments and
to assess their performances, and for which discrete financial information is availabie.




-20-

MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Segment Reporting - continued
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group did not present the segment reporting as City of
Dreams Manila is currently in an early phase of development, and mainly incurred pre-opening
expenses and other non-operating expenses during the year ended December 311 2013 and had no
revenue and incurred insignificant expenses for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31,
2012.

Subsequent Events

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position at the
balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-
end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
when material.

|
:
Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous ﬁnanc:al period except for
adoption of the following new and amended PAS and PFRS as at Januvary 1, 2013. The adoption of
these new and amended PAS and PFRS had no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements:

* PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income or OCI (Amendments)

=  PAS 19, Employee Berefits (Revised)

* PIRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities (Amendments)

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle)

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11 and PFRS 12 on transitional guidance

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements which are relevant to the Group are listed below. This listing |of standards and
interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects to have an impact on disclosures,
financial position or performance when applied at a future date. The Group intends to adopt these
standards when they become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect the
adoption of these new and amended PAS, PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
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3.

Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Acc
continued

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective - continued

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - OffSetting Financial Ass
Liabilities (Amendments)

ounting Policies -

els and Financial

The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and
also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not|simultaneous. The
amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2014.

PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Nol
(Amendments)

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13 on the d
under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recov

n-Financial Assels

isc10fures required
erable amounts for

the assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which impairment loss has been recognized or

reversed during the period. These amendments are effective retrospectively
beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provid
applied.

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)

for a!nnual periods
ed PFRS 13 is also

erivatives and

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a

derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. Thes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2014.

Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27)

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after Janu

e amendments are

ary 1, 2014. They

provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet %he de;:ﬁnition of an
investment entity under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires mvestment entities to
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. It is not expected that thls amendment
would be relevant to the Group since none of the entities in the Group would quahfy to be an

investment entity under PFRS 10.

Philippine IEnterpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (JFRIC 21)

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy ’thm| is t1:~iggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated

before the specified minimum threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective
beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

for annual periods
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|

|

3. Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Acc ount?ng Policies -
continued

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective - continued i
*  PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Anflendments)
!

The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined! benefit plans.
Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as reductions
to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the remeastirements of the net
defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service. Corllmbutlons that are
discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost upo'n payment of these
contributions to the plans. The amendments to PAS 19 are to be retrospectwely applied for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

=  Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)

amendments to the following standards:

I
i
|
, |
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent |bu‘c necessary
|
» PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition i
|
The amendment revised the definitions of vesting condition and market condition and added
the definitions of performance condition and service condition to clarify \Ifarlous issues. This
amendment shall be prospectively applied to share-based payment transactions for which the
grant date is on or after July 1, 2014. '
I
*» PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Considerationjin a Business

Combination i
|

The amendment clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the d'cﬁnition of a
financial instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equlty |m accordance
with PAS 32. Contingent consideration that is not classified as equlty 1s subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of PFRS 9
(or PAS 39, if PFRS 9 is not yet adopted). The amendment shall be prospectwely applied to

business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014. i
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3. Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Acc
continued

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective - continued

*  Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) - continued

ounting Policies -

PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of

the Total of the Reporiable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

The amendments require entities to disclose the judgment made by m

anagement in

aggregating two or more operating segments. This disclosure should include a brief

description of the operating segments that have been aggregated in this wa'y and

the economic

indicators that have been assessed in determining that the aggregated operatmg segments

share similar economic characteristics.

The amendments also clarify that an entity shall

provide reconciliations of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets if

such amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decisi(!m maker.

amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
applied retrospectively.

|
PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables

The amendment clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no|state:
can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

These
2014 and are

d interest rates

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement

of Accumulated Depreciation

The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment,

the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and
be treated in one of the following ways:

the asset shall

a. The gross carrymg amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation

of the carrying amount of the asset.

The accumulated depreciation at the date of

revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross can'):fmg amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying
asset.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July
amendment shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginni

amount of the

1, 2014. The
ing on or after

the date of initial application of this amendment and in the 1mmed1ately ‘preceding annual

period.
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3.

Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Accounting Policies -

continued

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective - continued

* Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) - continued

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel

The amendments clarify that an entity is a related party of the reportlng entity if the said
entlty, or any member of a group for which it is a part of, provides key marllagement personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity. The
amendments also clarify that a reporting entity that obtains management personnel services
from another entity (also referred to as management entity) is not required to disclose the
compensation paid or payable by the management entity to its employees or directors. The
reporting entity is required to disclose the amounts incurred for the key management
personnel services provided by a separate management entity. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively.

PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Aeccumulated Amortization

The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the carrying amount of
the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the
following ways:

a. The gross carrymg amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent w1th the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated amortlzatlon at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrymg amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset.

The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount accounted
for in accordance with the standard.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after{July 1, 2014. The
amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
peried.
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3.

Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Accounting Policies -

continued

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective - continued
Annuai Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary

amendments to the following standards:

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of
‘Effective PFRSs’

The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application, provided either standard
is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS financial
statements. This amendment is not applicable to the Group as it is not a first-time adopter of
PFRS.

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements

The amendment clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.

PYRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception
The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be|applied to financial
assets, financial liabilities and other contracts. The amendment is effective for annual periods

beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.

PAS 40, Investment Property

The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when classifying
property as investment property or owner-occupied property. The amendment stated that
judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of investment property is the
acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business combination within the scope of
PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3. This amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.
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3. Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Accounting Policies -

continued

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective - continued

PERS 9, Financial Instrumenis

PFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first and third phases of the project to replace PAS 39 and applies
to the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and hedge accounting,
respectively. Work on the second phase, which relate to impairment of fi nancial instruments, and
the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model hedge; accounting is still
ongoing, with a view to replace PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be
measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair value option
(FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business
model that has the objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual [cash flows and its
contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding. All other debt instruments are subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are measured |at fair value either
through other comprehensive income (QCI) or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for
trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For FVO habllxhes designated as at
fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in QCI. The remainder
of the change in fair value is presented in prof' t or loss, unless presentatloln of the fair value
change relating to the entity’s own credit risk in respect of the liability’s credlt risk in OCI would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39 classification and
measurement requirements for financijal liabilities have been carried forward t‘!) PFRS 9, including
the embedded derivative bifurcation separation rules and the criteria for usmg the FVO. The
adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of
the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. :

On hedge accounting, PFRS 9 replaces the rules- based hedge accounting model of PAS 39 with a
more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness
test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument, and the effect of credit risk on that ecohomlc relationship;
allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item, not only for financial items, but
also for non-financial items, provided that the risk component is separatelly identifiable and
reliably measurable; and allowing the time value of an option, the forward element of a forward
contract and any foreign currency basis spread to be excluded from the designation of a financial
instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires
more extensive disclosures for hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 currently has no mandatory effective date. PFRS 9 may be applied before the completion
of the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model and impairment
methodology. The Group will not adopt the standard before the completlon of the limited
amendments and the second phase of the project.
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3. Accounting Policies Effective During the Year and Future Changes in Accounting Policies -

continued

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective - continued
= Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Constructio

n of Real Estate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors.| The SEC and the
FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™) and an evaluation !of the requirements
of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is
completed.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated
financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts a:?.d circumstances as
of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s policies, management has made the fo

which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the con
statements.

llowing judgments
1solidated financial

Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of underlying circumstances relevant to the
Group, the functional currency of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries has beclm determined to be
the Philippine peso. The Philippine peso is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Parent Company and its subsidiaries operate and it is the currency that mainly influences
the revenue and expenses for management and operation of City of Dreams Manila.

Evaluating Lease Agreement. The Group has entered into the Lease Agreement w
Dreams Manila which became effective on March 13, 2013. The determination
agreement has to be accounted for as operating or finance lease requires signific
result of this determination can be significant to the Group’s financial position or
classification of the amounts of property and equipment and lease obligatio

th Belle for City of
of whether a lease
ant judgment. The
performance as the
n depends on this

assessment.

The Group, at inception of the Leéase Agreement on March 13, 2013, has determined based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that the lessor transfers substantially all
the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the building to the Group. The present value of the
minimum lease payments is significantly higher than the fair value of the bulldmg at the lease
inception date. Management considered this factor as key in assessing whether the risks and rewards
of incidental to ownership of the building had effectively been transferred to the Group Meanwhile,
the lease on the land is considered as operating lease because Belle retains all the siigniﬁcant risks and
rewards of ownership on the land at the end of the lease term and does not prowde the: Group with a
bargain purchase option over the leased asset (see Note 22(c)).
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4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions - continued

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustments
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment. The Group estimates the useful lives of property
and equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for operational
use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated
if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful
lives of property and equipment is based on collective assessment of industry| practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated useful life of property and equipment would increase
the recorded expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

There were no changes made in the estimated useful lives of the Group’s property and equipment.
The carrying values of property and equipment amounted to P 14,995,010 and P39,282 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 7). '

Estimating Fair Value of Share-based Payments. 'The Group measures the cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at
which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the
valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 28.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets. PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed when
certain impairment indicators are present. Determining the value of property and equipment, contract
acquisition costs and other intangible assets, which requires the determination of ;future cash flows
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the
Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the con5t:>lidated financial
statements. Future events could cause the Group to conclude that such assets are impaired. Any
resulting impairment could have a material impact on the financial condition and results of operation
of the Group.

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves Jjudgment and estimations. While the
Group believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant |chamges in these
assumptions may materially affect the Group’s assessment of recoverable values land may lead to
future additional impairment charges under PFRS.
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4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions - continued

Estimates and Assumptions - continued

No impairment losses were recognized for the year ended December 31,2013 and

for the period from

August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012. The carrying values of property and equipment amounted to
$14,995,010 and £39,282 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Npte 7); the carrying
values of contract acquisition costs amounted to £1,020,151 and £58,427 as of December 31, 2013

and 2012, respectively (see Note 8); and the carrying values of other intangible
P8,698 and nil as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 9).

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews the carrying amounts of
at the end of each reporting period and reduced these to the extent that it is no Ig
sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax a:
The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible ter
is based on the level and timing of forecasted taxable income of the subsequent

assets amounted to

deferred tax assets
nger probable that
ssets to be utilized.
yporary differences
reporting periods.

The forecast is based on past results and future expectations on revenues and expenses as well as

future tax planning strategies. However, there is no assurance that the Group will
taxable income to allow all or part of its deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax asset on deferred rent under PAS 17 amounting to 44,265 was reco
year ended December 31, 2013 to the extent of the amount of the reversing
difference arising from capitalized interest expense.

generate sufficient

gnized during the
taxable temporary

Certain deferred tax assets were not recognized because management believes that future taxable

profit will not be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to 770,504 and P16,219 as of Decen

2012, respectively (see Note 19).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

nber 31, 2013 and

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Cash on hand P687 | B
Cash in banks 8,599,155 I1,152,022
P8,599,342 P1,152,022

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Interest income from bank deposits
amounted to 251,807 and P112 for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from August

13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, respectively.
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6. Prepayments and Other Current Assets

This account consists of*

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Input VAT, net P351,458 P466
Current portion of prepaid rent (Note 10) 14,314 -
Creditable withholding tax 6,944 -
Prepaid license fee 6,680 -
Refundable deposits (Notes 24 and 25) 5,262 -
Interest receivables (Notes 24 and 25) 4,767 -
Other prepaid expenses 1,715 189
Deferred input VAT - 46

£391,140 B701

7. Property and Equipment

December 31,2013
Building under  Leasehold Motor  Furniture, Fixtures Construction

Finance Lease Improvements  Vehicles and Equipment in Progress Total

Costs:

Balance at

beginning of year P o B- £423 P38,839 B39,282
Additions 11,820,440 186,536 14,293 257,866 2,084,703 14,963,838
Capitalization of

depreciation - - - - 7,99 7,996
Balance at

end of year 11,820,440 186,536 14,293 258,289 2,731,558 15,011,116

Accumulated
Depreciation:

Balance at

beginning of year - - - - - -
Depreciation - (109) (1,620) (14,377) = (16,106)
Balance at

end of year - (109) (1,620) (34,377) ~ (16,106}

Net Book Value P£11,820,440 P186,427 P12,673 £243,912 P2,731,558  P14,995,010
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7. Property and Equipment - continued

December 31,2012
Building under  Leasehold Motor  Furniture, Fixtures Construction

Finance Lease Improvements Vehicle and Equipment in Progress Total

Costs:
Balance at
beginning of period P o P- P R P
Additions - - - 423 33,852 39,282
Balance at
end of period - - - 423 38,859 39,282

Accumulated
Depreciation: - - - - 4 -

Net Book Value B B B P423 R38,859 £39,282

On October 25, 2012, MCE Leisure and Belle entered into the Lease Agreement, which Belle agreed
to lease to MCE Leisure the land and certain of the building structures to be used| in Clty of Dreams
Manila (See Note 22(c)). Upon the Lease Agreement becoming effective on March 13, 2013,
management made an assessment at inception of the lease and recorded the portion related to the lease
of certain of the building structures as finance lease and capitalized the fair value based on valuation
by independent external valuer at inception date on the leased property (see Note 20) as well as
capitalized the portion of the contract acquisition costs of 864,721 to building ulnder finance lease
incurred in relation to the contract negotiations classified as building under finance lease (see Note 8).

In addition, furniture, fixtures and equipment with net book value amounted to 844,382 and nil were
held under finance lease as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Construction in progress represents the design and development cost for fit-out of City of Dreams
Manila which included direct incidental costs capitalized (representing travelling expenses, salaries
and wages, intercompany management fee incurred, depreciation of equipment and applicable interest
cost). As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, construction in progress included capltillzed interest paid
or payable on the obligations under finance lease which amounted to £147,553 and hil, reSpectwely

8. Contract Acquisition Costs

This account consists of:

December 31, December 31,

, 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year/period P58,427 ] B
Additions 1,134,576 58,427
Amortization {43,410) -
Capitalized in building under finance lease (Note 7) (64,721) -
Written off to development costs (Note 16) (64,721) -

Balance at end of year/period £1,020,151 B58,427
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8. Contract Acquisition Costs - continued

As of March 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, this account consists of legal and other professional
fees, documentary stamps tax and other directly atiributable costs incurredl by the Group in
negotiating the Lease Agreement and management contracts for City of Dreams I\{Ianila amounting to
£129,442 and 58,427, respectively. Upon the Lease Agreement becoming effective|on March 13,
2013, the Group had written off the portion of the contract acquisition costs amounting to 864,721
incurred in relation to the contract negotiations classified as operating lease tol development costs
(Note 16), while the remaining portion amounting to 264,721 incurred in relation to the contract
negotiations classified as building under finance lease is capitalized in building iunder finance lease
(Note 7). On the same date, the Group paid B1,063,561 to Belle as consideration for termination of
various agreements with a third party in accordance with the Closing Arrangernlent Agreement and
this amount is amortized over the lease term.

9. Other Intangible Assets

This account consists of:

Balance as of August 13, 2012, December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2013 .
Additions 8,698
Balance as of December 31, 2013 P|8,698

The other intangible assets represent the license fees incurred by MCE Leisure |for r ght to use of
certain trademarks for City of Dreams Manila and are amortized on a straight-line pasis|over the term
of the license agreement which expires in 5 years from the opening of City of Dreams Manila.

10. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

Advance payment and deposit for acquisition of

property and equipment P678,472 P
Noncurrent portion of prepaid rent 106,044 -
Security and renta) deposits (Notes 24 and 25) 90,342 -
Prepayment of deferred financing costs 20,937 -
B895,795 o

Advance payment for construction costs and deposit for acquisition of property and equipment are
connected with the fit-out of City of Dreams Manila and are not expected to be settled [to the Group
within the next financial year.
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10. Other Noncurrent Assets - continued

Upon the Lease Agreement becoming effective on March 13, 2013, a security dleposit of P175,599
was paid to Belle. As of December 31, 2013, part of prepaid rent amounting to B98,097 represented
the noncurrent portion of excess of principal amount of the security deposit paid pursuant to the Lease
Agreement over its fair value at inception, and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term
while part of the current portion of prepaid rent of 85,289 is included in prepayments and other
current assets (Note 6).

11. Restricted Cash

Under the Provisional License granted by PAGCOR, it is a requirement that the ILicensees set-up an
escrow account with an amount of US$100 million with a universal bank mlutually agreed by
PAGCOR and the Licensees. All funds for the development of the casino projec‘cI shall pass through
the escrow account and all drawdowns of funds from the said escrow account musi be applied to City
of Dreams Manila. The escrow account should have a maintaining balance of US$50 million until the
completion of City of Dreams Manila. As of December 31, 2013, MCE Lels:ure as one of the
Licensees maintained a balance of 2,226,674 (equivalent to US$50 miIlion) in the escrow account.
The escrow account will be closed at completion of City of Dreams Manila and funds held in the
escrow account will be released to MCE Leisure (see Note 23(c)).

12. Accrued Expenses, Other Payables and Other Current Liabilities

The amount consists of:

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Accruals for:
Fit-out construction costs 706,680 B5,595
Legal and other professional fees 87,671 28,251
Staff costs 43,971 -
Taxes and licenses 7,225 583
Operating expenses and others 42,416 1,492
Withholding tax payable 26,668 8
Other payables and liabilities 3,752 -
Capital gains tax payable - 44,524

B918,389 230,453

Accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities are due for payment within the next
financial year.
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13. Equity

Authorized Capital Stock

The following is a summary of the movement of the Parent Company’s authorized

the related issue price and date of approval of registration by the SEC:

capital stock with

Share Registered Issue Price
Common Common Common Date of SEC
Class A Class B Common share Class A Class B share Approval

90,000,000 60,000,000 - B3.20 £3.40 P—  |February 14, 1991

180,000,000 120,000,000 - 1.00 1.00 - August 9, 1993

270,006,000 180,000,000 - 1.00 1.00 -~ | October 21, 1997
(540,000,000) (360,000,000) 900,000,000 - - 1.00 March 5, 2013*

- —  5,000,000,000 - - 1.00 April 8, 2013

3,%00,000,000

*Declassification of Class A and Class B shares to a single class of common shares and denial of pre-emptive rights

As of December 31, 2012, the two classes of common stock, Class A shares and CIass B shares, are

identical in all respects except that Class A shares are restricted in ownership to
Both classes of common stocks have B1 par value per share.

Phlllppme nationals.

On February 19, 2013, the stockholders of MCP approved the declassification of the existing
B600,000 authorized capital stock of MCP, consisting of 60% Class A shares and 4(|)% Class B shares
to a single class of common stock and denial of pre-emptive rights and the illicrease in MCP’s
authorized capital stock to 5,900,000 divided into 5.9 billion shares with par valllle. of ®1 per share
from authorized capital stock of £900,000 divided into 900 million shares with par value of 1 per

share.

On March 5, 2013, the SEC approved the declassification of the capital stock of MC
On April 8, 2013, the SEC

of common stock and denial of pre-emptive rights.
increase in authorized share capital stock of MCP.

Issued Capital Stock
The Parent Company’s issued capital stock as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
per share are as follows:

December 31,

P to a single class
also approved the

with par value of Bl

December 31,

2013 2012
Class A — issued - 337,500,000
Class B — issued - 225,000,000
Common share — issued 4,426,303,300 -
Total number of issued capital stock 4,426,303,300 56:2,500,000

On March 20, 2013, MCP entered into the Share Subscription Transaction with MCE Investments,
under which MCE Investments subscribed for 2,846,595,000 common shares of MCP at par value of
B1 per share for a total consideration of 2,846,595. The Share Subscription Transaction was
completed upon SEC’s approval of the increase in MCP’s authorized capital stock on April 8, 2013.
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13. Equity - continued

Issued Capital Stock - continued
On April 24, 2013, MCP and MCE Investments completed the Placing and Subscription Transaction,
under which MCE Investments offered and sold in a private placement to various institutional
investors of 981,183,700 common shares of MCP with par value of B1 per share, atithe offer price of
P14 per share. In connection with the Offer, MCE Investments granted the Over-allotment Option of
up to 117,075,000 common shares of MCP with par value of B1 per share, at the offer price of 14
per share to the Stabilizing Agent. MCE Investments then used the proceeds from the Offer to
subscribe to an equivalent number of common shares in MCP at the subscription! price of B14 per
share.

On May 23, 2013, the Stabilizing Agent exercised the Over-allotment Option and subscribed for
36,024,600 common shares of MCP with par value of 21 per share, at the offer price| of 14 per share.
MCE Investments then used the proceeds from the Over-allotment Option to| subscribe to an
equivalent number of common shares in MCP at the subscription price of 14 per share.

—

The aggregate net proceeds from aforementioned equity transactions, after deducting the underwriting
commissions and other expenses of 407,626, was £16,679,885.

Treasury Shares
As of December 31, 2012, the total number of treasury shares held by MCP was 150,435,404 shares,

‘ representmg 64,803,449 Class A shares and 85,631,955 Class B shares, and the totzla.l cost of treasury
shares in aggregate was P288,514. The declassification of Class A and Class B h‘easury shares to a
single class of common stock treasury share were approved by the SEC on March 5 2013. On April
8, 2013, MCP sold all of its treasury shares, representing 150,435,404 common shares to third parties
at P14.2 per share. As of December 31, 2013, MCP does not have any remaining treasury shares.

Equity Reserve
The amount of equity reserve consists of the net difference between the cost of MCP to acquire MCE

Holdings Group and the legal capital of the latter (i.e., common stock and additional paxd—m capital) at
the date of reverse acquisition plus the retained earnings of MCP as of December 19 2012, the date
when MCP was acquired by MCE through MCE Investments and MCE Investments No.2.

The equity reserve is accounted for as follows:

December 31, December 31,
} 2013 2012
Retained earmings of MCP as of |
December 19, 2012 £732,453 R732,453
Consideration to MCP for the acquisition of
MCE Holdings Group (7,198,590) —
Legal capital of MCE Holdings Group:
As of March 20, 2013 * 2,852,147 -
As of December 31, 2012 - 8310
|
(#3,613,990) P740,763
* Including share issuance costs of 2,094

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Parent Company has 436 and 471 stockholders, respectively.
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14. General and Administrative Expenses

For the Period from
For the Year Ended Augusti 13,2012 to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Legal and other professional fees P87,639 B2,843
Taxes and licenses 45,440 708
Rental expenses (Note 23(b)) 8,209 -
Operating expenses and others 11,666 -

152,954 | B3,551

15. Pre-opening Costs

For the iPeriod from
For the Year Ended August 13,2012 to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Staff costs P182,814 ! P

Consultancy fee in consideration for
share awards (Note 28) 182,215 ; -
Project management fee expenses (Note 17) 164,814 f -
Rental expenses (Note 23(b)) 156,712 | -
Share-based compensation expenses (Note 28) 95,936 | -
Legal and other professional fees 29,168 -
Operating expenses and others 46,123 | -
£857,782 | P

!

For the|Period from
For the Year Ended August 13,2012 to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

16. Development Costs

Written off from contract acquisition

costs (Note 8) 264,721 o
Legal and other professional fees 25,284 45,841
Project management fee expenses (Note 17) 1,532 -
Operating expenses and others 3,553 79

P95,090 P45,920
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17. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating

decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common

significant influence.

control or common

In addition to those transactions disclosed in Notes 1(b), 1{c), 1(d), 13, 26(b) and 26(c), the Group

entered into the following significant related party transactions:

Amount of
transactions
for the Qutstanding
Category Year/Period balance
Amount due from a shareholder
MCE Investments No.2
For the Year Ended Settlement of payables on P5,425 B5,425
December 31, 2013 behalf of a shareholder
Balance as of
December 31, 2013 P5,425
For the Period from N/A B- P
August 13,2012 to
December 31, 2012
Balance as of
December 31, 2012 B
Amount due to ultimate holding company
MCE
For the Year Ended Project management fee P58,559 P58,559
December 31, 2013 expenses recognized as
pre-cpening costs
Settlement of payables 10,809 91,756
on behalf of MCP
Management fee income?  (52,952) (52,952)
Revaluation of outstanding 10,424 10,424
balances
Balance as of
December 31, 2013 B107,787
For the Period from Settlement of payables £90.434 B90L,434
August 13,2012 to on behalf of MCP
December 31, 2012
Balance as of
December 31, 2012

290,434

Term

Repa[yahle
on déemand;
non-interest
beari{ng

Canditions

Unsecured,
no impairment

Repayable Unsecured
on demand;
non-interest

bearing

Repayable Unsecured
on démand;
nen-interest

bearilng
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17. Related Party Transactions — continued

Amount of
transactions
for the QOutstanding
Category Year/Period balance Terms Conditions
Amount due to immediate holding company
MCE Investments
For the Year Ended Acquisition costs related P7,198,5390 B~ Repayable Unsecured
December 31, 2013 to Asset Acquisition on de;mand;
Transaction non-ipterest
bearing
Funds advance to MCP 811,660 811,660
Settlement of payables on (255) {255)
behalf of immediate
holding company
Revaluation of outstanding 76,010 76,010
balances
Balance as of
December 31, 2013 B887,415
For the Period from N/A - P
August 13,2012 1o
December 31, 2012
Balance as of
December 31, 2012 i
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17. Related Party Transactions — continued

Category

Amounts due to gffiliated companies

MCE’s subsidiaries
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

For the Period from
August 13, 2012 to
December 31, 2012

Project management fee
expenses capitalized in
construction in progress

Project management fee
expenses capitalized in
other noncurrent assets

Project management fee
expenses recognized as
pre-opening costs

Project management fee
expenses recognized as
development costs

Management fee expenses
recognized as general
and administrative
expenses

Settlement of payables
on behalf of MCFP

Revaiuation of outstanding

balances

Balance as of
December 31, 2013

Project management fee
expenses capitalized in
construction in progress

Settlement of payables
on behalf of MCP

Balance as of
December 31, 2012

Amount of

transactions
for the Outstanding

Year/Period balance

B152,735 B171,234
1,572 1,572
106,255 99,826
1,532 923
6,221 6,221
49,207 47,521
18,647 18,152
$345,449
22,253 £21,343
560 560

B21,903

Terms

Repayable

on demand;
non-interest
bearil':g

Repayable

on demand;
non-ir:ltcrcst.
bearing

Conditions

Unsecured

Unsecured
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17. Related Party Transactions - continued

Category
Amounts due to affiliated companies - continued
A subsidiary of Crown Resorts
Limited (“Crown™)®
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Acquisition of property
and equipment

Balance as of
December 31, 2013

For the Peried from N/A
August 13,2012 to

December 31, 2012

Balance as of
December 31, 2012

Melco International
Developments Limited
(“Melco™) and its
subsidiary

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Settlement of payables
on behalf of MCP

Revaluation of outstanding

balances

Baiance as of
December 31, 2013

For the Period from
August 13,2012 to
December 31, 2012

Settlement of payables
on behalf of MCP

Balance as of
December 31, 2012

Note:

Amount of
transactions
for the Qutstanding
Year/Pericd balance
P5,874 P5,874
£5,874
P o
P
B5,827 £2,207
236 61
P2,268
BO12 e
P

Terms Conditions

Repayable . Unsecured
on demand;
non-interest

bearing

Repqyable? Unsecured
on demand;
non-interest

bearing

Repayable !  Unsecured
on demand;
non-interest
bearing

(1) The amount represents the recharge of share-based compensation expenses for certain directors of MCP for the year ended

December 31, 2013 to MCE.

(2} Crown and Melco are major shareholders of MCE.

Directors’ Remuneration

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31,
2012, the remuneration of directors of the Group were borne by MCE. -
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17. Related Party Transactions - continued

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The compensation of key management personnel of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2013
and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012 is as follows:

For the Period from
For the Year Ended August|13, 2012 to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Basic salaries, allowances and

benefits in kind : B81,160 P
Performance bonuses 20,939 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 1,663 -
Share-based compensation 35,509 -

P139,271 B

18. Basic/Diluted Loss Per Share

For the Period from
For the Year Ended August{13, 2012 to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Net loss (a) (82,463,417) (P49,786)
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding of legal parent (b) 3,312,053.436 412,064,596
Basic/Diluted loss per share (a)/(b)*1,000 (20.749) (R20.12)

For the year ended December 31, 2013, 116,144,153 outstanding share optiolns and 58,072,076
outstanding restricted shares as of December 31, 2013 were excluded from the computation of diluted
net loss per share as their effect would have been anti-dilutive, For the period fro:m August 13, 2012
to December 31, 2012, there were no potential dilutive common shares that would have a dilutive
effect on basic loss per share.
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19. Income Tax

No provision for current income tax for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from
August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012 were provided as the Group 1ncun'ed tax losses.

The Group recognized the following deferred tax asset and liability during the year/period:

December 31, December 31,
2013 !2012
Deferred tax asset: l _
Deferred rent under PAS 17 ' P44.265 P
Deferred tax liability:
Capitalized interest expense (44,2065) -
P | P

The Group has the following temporary differences for which no deferred ta>|( assets have been
recognized since management believes that the Group may not be able to realize the benefits from
these deferred tax assets in the future.

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Net operating loss carryover (“NOLCO”) P468,301 B16,219
Deferred rent under PAS 17 178,446 -
Share-based compensations 83,445 -
Unrealized foreign exchange loss, net 31,782 -
Others 8,530 —
B770,504 P16,219

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s NOLCO can be carried forward and claimed as deduction
from regular taxable income are as follows, the amount below included the NOII,CO of 1,264 and
£1,429 incurred by former business of MCP in 2011 and 2012 which will be exp1red in 2014 and
2015, respectively:

Year Incurred Expiry Year Amount
2011 2014 P1,264
2012 2015 51,433
2013 2016 7 1,5_08,307

P1,561,004

NOLCO incurred in 2010 amounting to ®1,365 expired in 2013.
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18. Income Tax - continued

A reconciliation of income tax benefit computed at statutory income tax rate to provision for income
tax is as follows:
For the Period from
For the Year Ended August(13,2012to
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Income tax benefit computed at statutory
income tax rate (B739,025) (P14,936)
Income tax effects of:
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets 754,285 16,219
Expired NOLCO 410 -
Expenses not deductible for tax 682 -
Interest income subject to final tax (16,352) (33)
Others - (1,250)
;3 | B

Section 13(2)(a) of the PAGCOR Charter grants PAGCOR an exemption frolm tax, income or
otherwise, as well as exemption from any form of charges, fees, levies of whatever nature, whether
national or local, except a 5% franchise tax on the gross revenue or earnings derived by PAGCOR on
its operations under the franchise. Such tax shall be in lieu of all taxes, levies, fee§ or assessments of
any kind, nature or description, levied, established or collected by any municilpal, provincial, or
national government authority. Section 13(2)(a) of the PAGCOR Charter which provides that the
exemptions granted for earnings derived from the operations conducted under the franchise
specifically from the payment of any tax, income or otherwise, as well as any form‘of charges, fees or
levies, shall inure to the benefit of and extend to the corporations, associations, agencies or individuals
with whom PAGCOR, or operator has any contractual relationship in connection with the operations
of the casino authorized to be conducted under the franchise and to those recewmg compensation of
other remuneration from PAGCOR or operator as a result of essential fac1htles furnished and/or
technical services rendered to PAGCOR or operator. Management believes that the tax benefits
granted to PAGCOR under its charter inure to the benefit of, and extend to corpor@ons associations
and agencies, individuals with whom PAGCOR has any contractual agreement in accordance with
Section 13(2)(b} of the PAGCOR Charter as of December 31, 2012.

The Bureau of Internal Revenue issued Revenue Memorandum Circular (“RMC?) No. 33-2013 on
April 17,2013, The RMC clarifies that PAGCOR is no longer exempt from corporate income tax and
is thus subject to corporate income tax under the National Internal Revenue Code (the “Tax Code™) on
its operatlons of gambling, casinos, gaming clubs and other similar recreation or amusement places,
gaming pools and other related operations as well as on other income. The RMC further provided that
PAGCOR’s licensees and contractees, which are entities duly authorized and licensed by PAGCOR to
perform gambling casinos, gaming clubs and other similar recreation or amusement places, and
gaming pools, are likewise subject to income tax under.the Tax Code. As of December 31, 2013,
management believes that the said RMC doés not have any material financial impact to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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19. Income Tax - continued

20. Obligations Under Finance Lease

On August 23, 2013, MCE Leisure was issued a certificate of registration by Philippine Economic
Zone Authority (“PEZA™) as a tourism economic zone enterprise (“Tourism Economic Zone
Enterprise”) for the development and operation of tourist facilities, particularly: (a) hotels, including
facilities relating thereto, such as spas, fitness centers, restaurants, etc; (b) retail areas; (c) theme
amusement and entertainment complexes; (d) ballroom, function room, and conference facilities; and
(e) food and beverage outlets, at the Belle Grande Manila Bay (now rebranded as City of Dreams
Manila), pursuant to the terms and conditions of a registration agreement signed between PEZA and
MCE Leisure on August 22, 2013. As a Tourism Economic Zone Enterprise, MCE Leisure was
granted the following fiscal incentives: (a) tax and duty free importation of cap1ta1 equipment to be
used as part of the registered activity; and (b) VAT zero rating on local purchase of capital equipment
in accordance with the PEZA rules and regulations. l

Lease payments that are due within one year were presented as current portion of obligations under
finance lease under current liabilities while the noncurrent portion was presented as noncurrent
portion of obligations under finance lease separately under noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets.

On October 25, 2012, MCE Leisure and Belle entered into the Lease Agreement, where Belle agreed
to lease to MCE Leisure the land and certain of the building structures to be used|in City of Dreams
Manila for the period from March 13, 2013 (i.e. the date when relevant obl gatlons and other
conditions to give effect to the Lease Agreement were satisfied) until the tennmat[on of the Operating
Agreement, currently expected to be on July 11, 2033 or unless terminated earlier i in accordance with
its terms (see Note 22(b) and (¢)). The Group made an assessment at mceptlon of the lease and
recorded the portion related to the lease of certain of the building structures under finance lease, with
the amount of obligation under finance iease recognized being the lower of the fair value of the
building structures and present value of the minimum lease payments. Interest rate underlying the
obligations under finance lease was 14.92% per annum at inception of the Lease Ag!reement.

On July 31, 2013, MCE Leisure and Belle signed an addendum to the Lease Agreelment to reduce the
monthly rental payments with effective from July 1, 2013 with total discount for each twelve month
rolling period with a cap of the Philippine peso equwalent of US$1,000,000, w:th the first twelve
month period beginning from March 1, 2013. As a result of the discount in monthly rental payments,
the interest rate underlying the obhgatlons under finance lease was revised to 14.63% per annum. As
of December 31, 2013, after subsequent minor changes to the terms of the LeaSe Agreement, the
interest rate hnderlyihg the obligations under finance lease was revised to 14.58% per annum.




-
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20. Obligations Under Finance Lease - continued

As of December 31, 2013, the minimum lease payments and present value of minimum lease
payments on obhgatlons under finance lease of the Group on the Lease Agreement were as follows:

Preselllt Value of
Minimum Lease Minirrlxum Lease

Payments Payments

Amounts payable under finance lease: |

Within one year P1,305472 £1,206,198

In more than one year and not more than five years 6,490,353 4,170,746

In more than five years 36,160,760 7,059,327

43,956,585 12,436,271

Less: Finance charges (31,520,314) -
Present value of lease obligations $£12.436,271 12,436,271
Less: Current portion of obligations under

finance lease (1,206,198)
Noncurrent portion of obligations under finance lease P1!1,230,073

Apart from the lease of certain of the building structures under finance lease as mentioned above, for
the year ended December 31, 2013, MCE Leisure signed a master service agreement with a third party
to set up certain information technology infrastructure (the “I'T Equipment™) to be used in City of
Dreams Manila and provide maintenance and support service to MCE Leisure for the period from
August 2013 to November 2018. The ownership and title of the IT Equipment will be transferred to
MCE Leisure upon expiry of the term or when MCE Leisure agrees to purchase th:e IT Equipment at
agreed prices at different time periods if the master service agreement is early terminated. The Group
made an assessment at inception of the master service agreement and recorded the| portion related to
the IT Equipment under finance lease. Interest rate underlying the obligations under finance lease for
the IT Equipment was 8% per annum at inception of the master service agreement.
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20. Obligations Under Finance Lease - continued

21. Long-term Debt

As of December 31, 2013, the minimum lease payments and present value of minimum lease

payments on obligations under finance lease for the IT Equipment were as follows:

Presenllt Value of
Minimum Lease  Minimum Lease

Payments Payments

Amounts payable under finance lease:

Within one year P11,396 B7,989

In more than one year and not more than five years 44,635 38,210

In more than five years -

56,031 46,199

Less: Finance charges {9,832) -
Present value of lease obligations P46,199 46,199
Less: Current portion of obligations under

finance lease {7.989)
Noncurrent portion of obligations under finance lease B38,210

Senior Notes

On December 19, 2013, MCE Leisure priced its £15,000,000 5.00% senior notes, due 2019 (the

“Sentor Notes™) at par of 100% of the principal amount and offered to certain pr,
lenders as noteholders via private placement in the Philippines. The issuance of

imary institutional
the Senior Notes,

subject to customary closing conditions, was subsequently completed on January 24, 2014,

The Senior Notes are general obligations of MCE Leisure, secured on a first-ranki
of shares of all present and future direct and indirect subsidiaries of MCP, rank

ng basis by pledge
equally in right of

payment to all existing and future senior indebtedness of MCE Leisure (save and except for any
statutory preference or priority) and ranks senior in right of payment to any existing and future

subordinated indebtedness of MCE Leisure.

The Senior Notes are guaranteed by MCP and all present and future direct and indir
MCP (subject to certain limited exceptions) (collectively the “Guarantors”) jointly/|

ect subsidiaries of
land severally with

MCE Leisure; and irrevocably and unconditionally by MCE on a senior basis. The guarantees are
general obligations of the Guarantors, rank equally in right of payment to all ex1stm|g and future senior
indebtedness of the Guarantors (except for any statutory preference or priority) and rank senior in
right of payment to any existing and future subordinated indebtedness of the Guarantors.
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21. Long-term Debt - continued

Senior Notes - continued

The Senior Notes mature on January 24, 2019. Interest on the Senior Notes is a

ccrued at a rate of

5.00% per annum and is payable semi-annually in arrears on January 24 and July 24 of each year,
commencing on July 24, 2014. In addition, the Senior Notes includes a tax gross up provision
requiring MCE Leisure to pay without any deduction or withhelding for or on account of tax.

The net proceeds from the offering of the Senior Notes, after deducting the underw
and other expenses of 14,980, was £14,985,020. MCE Leisure will use the net
offering to fund the City of Dreams Manila project, refinancing of debt and for
purposes.

MCE Leisure has the option to redeem all or a portion of the Senior Notes at any tir
24, 2015 at 100% of the principal amount plus applicable premium as defined in th
security agreement (the “Notes Facility and Security Agreement”) governing
Thereafter, MCE Leisure has the option to redeem all or a portion of the Senior N
fixed prices that decline ratably over time.

The Notes Facility and Security Agreement contains certain covenants that,
exceptions and conditions, limit the ability of MCP and its subsidiaries’ abilit;

Leisure to, among other things: (i} incur or guarantee additional indebtedness; (;

create liens; and (iv) effect a consolidation and merger.

The Senior Notes are exempted from registration with SEC under the Philippine Se:
Code Rule (“SRC Rule”) 9.2.2(B) promulgated by SEC as the Senior Notes were
placement to not more than nineteen primary institutional lenders, accordingly,
subject to the conditions of the said SRC Rule 9.2, 2(B) which limit the assignment

Lo .
riting commissions

proceeds from the
general corporate

ne prior to January
e notes facility and
the Senior Notes.
otes at any time at

subject to certain
, including MCE
ii) sell assets; (iii)

curities Regulation
offered via private

the Senior Notes is

and transfer of the

Senior Notes to primary institutional lenders only and to be held by not more than nineteen primary

institutional lenders at any time before maturity of the Senior Notes,

Shareholder Loan Facility

On December 23, 2013, MCE Leisure, as borrower (the “Borrower”), signed the definitive agreement

of the senior secured shareholder loan facility (the “Shareholder Loan Facility]

) in an aggrepate

amount of up to US$340,000,000 (the “Shareholder Loan™) with MCE Investmtlants as lender (the
“Lender”) with reference to cerfain terms and conditions set out in a comnllitment letter (the
“Commitment Letter”) entered by MCE Leisure with MCE Investments on April 12, 2013. The

Shareholder Loan Facility is a term loan facility denominated in the United States dollars.

MCE Holdings, MCE Holdings No. 2 (together with the Borrower, the “Obligors

MCP,
”) have provided a

guarantee under the Shareholder Loan Facility in favour of the Lender in relation to the obligations of
the Obligors under the Shareholder Loan. The Lender may require such security als 1s notified by the
Lender to the Borrower, including a pledge of shares (legally and beneficially heid) over each of the
present and future direct and indirect subsidiaries of MCP to be provided as a condition precedent to

the initial utilization of the Shareholder Loan.
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21. Long-term Debt - continued

Shareholder Loan Facility - continued

The Shareholder Loan Facility availability period is to be notified by the Lenderi prior to the initial
utilization of the Shareholder Loan, and is subject to quarterly amortization payments commencing on
six months after the opening of City of Dreams Manila. The individual drawdowns under the
Sharcholder Loan Facility are subject to certain conditions precedents, including completion of a
utilization request of proposed drawdown and issuance of promissory note in favour of the Lender
with the same amount of proposed drawdown. Borrowings under the Shareholder; Loan Facility bear
interest at a fixed rate of 5% per annum, accrued prior to the first interest payment date. The
Shareholder Loan Facility includes a tax gross up provision requiring MCE Leisure to pay without
any deduction or withholding for or on account of tax.

As of December 31, 2013, the Shareholder Loan Facility has not been drawn as it was originally
intended to be a back-up facility arrangement and will only be utilized by the Borrower if the issuance
of the Senior Notes is not completed.

22. Cooperation Agreement, Operating Agreement and Lease Agreement

On October 25, 2012, MCE Holdings Group and certain of its affiliated compan1e= and the Philippine
Parties entered into the Closing Arrangement Agreement; and MCE I—Ioldmgs Group and the
Philippine Parties entered into the Cooperation Agreement. The Closing Arrangement Agreement,
whereby the Licensees agreed on the procedure, requirements and mechanics w1th respect to the
Closmg The Cooperation Agreement became effective on March 13, 2013 (except for certain
provisions which were effective on signing), the date on which all of the closing conditions were
fulfilled or waived.
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22. Cooperation Agreement, Operating Agreement and Lease Agreement

(a) Cooperation Agreement

The Cooperation Agreement governs the relationship and the rights and obligations of the
Licensees. Under the Cooperation Agreement, MCE Leisure has been designated as the operator
to operate City of Dreams Manila and appointed as the sole and exclusive re'presentative of the
Licensees in connection with the Provisional License and the operation and management of City
of Dreams Manila until the expiry of the Provisional License, currently expected to be on July 11,

2033 or unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms.

The Cooperation Agreement includes terms as follows, which:

i) prohibit against assignment of rights and interests in the Provision?] License by the
Licensees except in certain circumstances, to an affiliate of that Licensee unless with prior
written consent from other Licensees and prior written approval of PAGC‘OR

ii)  set out the Licensees’ contributions to the investment commitment required by PAGCOR,
details were disclosed in Note 23(c);

iii)  set out the right of first refusal and non-compete as agreed between the Licensees during the
period commencing October 25, 2012 and ending on the date five years after the date of
termination of the Cooperation Agreement, be involved in a similar blusiness to City of
Dreams Manila, including any integrated resort comprising gaming or casino operations, a
hotel and entertainment venue in the Philippines;

iv) none of the Licensees (other than, or with the consent of, MCE Leisure)} may on behalf of
any or all of the Licensees enter into any arrangement, agreement, make any commitment,
or incur any obligation or liability to any person (including to any Government authority) in
connection with the Provisional License;

v)  Belle will not, without the prior written consent of the MCE Holdings Group, sell, assign,
transfer or convey any part of the land, building structures or land leased to MCE Leisure or
terminate, novate or amend the lease agreement between Belle and the Government’s Social
Security System (the “SSS Lease Contract”) as disclosed in Note 22(c);
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22. Cooperation Agreement, Operating Agreement and Lease Agreement — continued

(a)

(®)

Cooperation Agreement — continued

vi) if any of City of Dreams Manila’s land or building structures are or are proposed to be
levied upon, gamished, foreclosed or attached by any Government authority, MCE Leisure
may advance any sum or make any payment to prevent such actlon and charge the
Philippine Parties for such payment plus a fee of 25% of the amount advanced plus 15%
interest per year of the aggregate amount paid by MCE Leisure;

vii) Registration with Philippine Economic Zone Authority and/or Philippine Tourism
Infrastructure and Enterprise Zone must be maintained by Belle and MCE Leisure at all
times;

viii) restriction on change of control of the Licensees;

ix)  respective parties contribution in relation to City of Dreams Manila, inclulding MCE Leisure
responsibility for the fit-out, operation and management of City of Dreams Manila, and the
Philippine Parties’ responsibility for the design and construction of the buildings for City of
Dreams Manila (through Belle); and

x)  the indemnity of the Licensees, details were disclosed in Note 23(c).
Operating Agreement

On March 13, 2013, the Licensees entered into the Operating Agreement which governs the
operation and management of City of Dreams Manila by MCE Leisure] The Operating
Agreement was effective as of March 13, 2013 and ends on the date of expiry lof the Provisional
License (as that License is extended, restored or renewed), unless terminated earlier in accordance
with the terms of the Operating Agreement. The Provisional License is currently scheduled to
expire on July 11, 2033. Under the Operating Agreement, MCE Leisure is appomted as the sole
and exclusive operator and manager of City of Dreams Manila, and is responlmble for, and has
sole discretion (subject to certain exceptions) and control over, all matters relating to the
management and operation of City of Dreams Manila (including the casino and gaming
operations, hotel and retail components and all other activities necessary, desirable or incidental
for the management and operation of City of Dreams Manila). The Operating Agreement also
included terms of certain payments to be payable to PLAI upon commencement of operations of
City of Dreams Manila, in particular, PLAI has the right to receive monthly payments from MCE
Leisure, based on the performance of gaming operatlons of City of Dreams Mamla and MCE
Leisure has the right to retain all revenues from non-gaming operations of City of Dreams Manila.
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22, Cooperation Agreement, Operating Agreement and Lease Agreement — continued

{c) Lease Agreement

23. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Capital Commitments

On October 25, 2012, MCE Leisure and Belle entered into the Lease Agreement (see Notes 7 and
20), which Belle agreed to lease to MCE Leisure the land and certain of the bmldmg structures to
be used in City of Dreams Manila. Belle has constructed on the land the phlase 1 building (the
“Phase ! Building”) and the phase 2 building (the “Phase 2 Building”) is currently under
construction on the land intended for use for City of Dreams Manila. Part of|the land leased by
Beile to MCE Leisure is leased by Beile from the Government’s Social Security System under the
SS8 Lease Contract.

The Lease Agreement became effective on March 13, 2013 with minor changes to the original
terms under a closing side letter (the “Closing Side Letter”) signed by MCE Ho]dmgs Group and
certain of its affiliated companies and the Philippine Parties on the same date, |of which the lease
of land and the Phase | Building commenced on March 13, 2013, with the lea.e of the remaining
building structures of the Phase 2 Building to be commenced as those parts of the building
structures are constructed in accordance with the terms of the Lease Agreement, with minor
changes to the terms were made during the year ended December 31, 2013. The lease continues
until termination of the Operating Agreement, currently expected to be on July|11, 2033 or unless
terminated earlier in accordance with its terms. The leased property will be used by MCE Leisure
and any of its affiliates exclusively as a hotel, casino, and resort complex, with retail,
entertainment, convention, exhibition, food and beverages services as well |as other activities
ancillary, related or incidental to the operation of the any of the preceding uses.

Under the Closing Side Letter signed on March 13, 2013 in relation to the |Lease Agreement,
MCE Leisure agreed to make monthly payments under the Lease Agreement beginning from
March 1, 2013.

On July 31, 2013, MCE Leisure and Belle signed an addendum to the Lease Agreement to reduce
the monthly rental payments with effective from July 1, 2013 with total dlscount for each twelve
month rolling period with a cap of the Philippine peso equivalent of US$1, 000! 000, with the first
twelve month period beginning from March 1, 2013, and subsequent minor changes to the terms
of the Lease Agreement were made during the year ended December 31, 2013

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had capital commitments mainly for the fit-out construction
costs of City of Dreams Manila totaling 4,037,757.
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23. Commitments and Contingencies - continued
(b) Operating Lease Commitments

MCE Leisure leased the portion of land to be used in City of Dreams Manila under non-
cancellable operating lease agreement that will expire on July 11, 2033 (see| Note 22(c)). The
Lease Agreement provides for periodic rental increases based on both contractually agreed
incremental rates and on the general inflation rate once agreed by MCE Leisure and Belle. In
addition, MCE Leisure leased certain office spaces, warehouses and staff qualufer. For the year
ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012 to Decel:nber 31, 2012, the
Group incurred total rental expenses amounting to 172,468 and nil, of which P8,209 and nil
were recognized as general and administrative expenses, 156,712 and nil were recognized as
pre-opening costs and £7,547 and nil were capitalized in construction in progress, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

Delcember 31,

2013
Year ending December 31

2014 P162,177
2015 136,218
2016 142,990
2017 155,834
2018 161,151
Over 2018 2,584,156

P3,342,526

(¢) Other Commitments and Guarantees
Provisional License

Under the terms of the Provisional License, PAGCOR requires, amongst | other things, the
Licensees to make a total investment of US$1 billion for City of Dreams Manilia (the “Investment
Commitment™) with a minimum investment of US$650.0 million to be made prior to the opening
of City of Dreams Manila. Under the terms of the Cooperation Agreement, the Licensees’
Investment Commitment of US$1 billion will be satisfied as follows:

(i)  For the amount of US$650.0 million: (a) in the case of the Philippine Palrties, the land and
building structures having an aggregate value as determined by PAGCOR of not less than
US$325.0 million; and (b) in the case of MCE Leisure, the fit-out and furniture, gaming
equipment, additional improvements, inventory and supplies as well as intangible property
and entertainment facilities inside or outside of the building structures, having an aggregate
value as determined by PAGCOR of not less than US$325.0 million.
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23. Commitments and Contingencies - continued
(c) Other Commitments and Guarantees - continued

Provisional License - continued

(ii)

For the remaining US$350.0 million, the Philippine Parties and MCE Leisure shall make
equal contributions of US$175.0 million to City of Dreams Manila. The Licensees agree to
contribute such amounts and for such purposes as notified by MCE Leisure (or in certain
circumstances the Philippine Parties) to PAGCOR (subject to any |recommendations
PAGCOR may make).

Other commitments required by PAGCOR under the Provisional License are as follows:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Within 30 days from getting approval by PAGCOR of the project implemnentation plan, to
submit a bank guarantee, letter of credit or surety bond in the amount of 100 million to
guarantee the Licensees’ completion of City of Dreams Manila and in sq-l‘nject to forfeiture
in case of delay in construction which delay exceeds 50% of the schedule, of which SM
Group had submitted a surety bond of 2100 million to PAGCOR on FebrLJary 17,2012,

Seven days prior to commencement of operation of the casino, to s\‘a:c:urI a sﬁrety bond in
favor of PAGCOR in the amount of 100 million to ensure prompt and punctual
remittance/payment of all license fees. ’

The Licensees are required to maintain an escrow account into which all funds for
development of City of Dreams Manila must be deposited and all funds withdrawn from
this account must be used only for such development and to deposit US$[1 00 million in the
escrow account and maintain a balance of US$50 million until completion of City of
Dreams Manila, of which MCE Leisure had setup the escrow account in I\](arch 2013.

License fees must be remitted on a monthly basis, in lieu of all taxes with reference to the
income component of the gross gaming revenues: (a) 15% high roller tables; (b) 25% non-
high roller tables; (c) 25% slot machines and electronic gaming machines; and (d) 15%
junket operation.

In addition to the above license fees, the Licensees is required fo reﬁnit 2% of casino
revenues generated from non-junket operation tables to a foundation devoted to the
restoration of Philippine cultural heritage, as selected by Licensees %nd approved by
PAGCOR, of which the foundation was subsequently setup by MCE Leisure on February
19, 2014,

PAGCOR may collect a 5% fee of non-gaming revenue received from food and beverage,
retail and entertainment outlets. All revenues of hotel operations should not be subject to -
the 5% except rental income received from retail concessionaires.
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23. Commitments and Contingencies - continued

(¢) Other Commitments and Guarantees - continued

Provisional License - continued

Grounds for revocation of the license, among others, are as follows: (a) failu

e to comply with

material provision of this license; (b) failure to remit license fees within 30 days frolm receipt of
notice of default; (c) has become bankrupt, insolvent; (d) delay in construction bf more than 50%
of the schedule; and (e) if debt-to-equity ratio is more than 70:30. As of Delcernber 31, 2013,

MCE Heldings Group as one of the parties as Licensees has complied with the requnred debt-to-

equity ratio as agreed with PAGCOR, further details please refer to Note 24
management.

Cooperation Agreement

Under the terms of the Cooperation Agreement, the Licensees are jointly and
PAGCOR under the Provisional License and each Licensee (indemnifying
indemnify the other Licensees for any loss suffered or incurred by that Licensee
in connection with, any breach by the indemnifying Licensee of the Provision
each of the Philippine Parties and MCE Leisure agree to indemnify the non-bz
any loss suffered or incurred as a result of a breach of any warranty.

Lease Agreement

Under the terms of the Lease Agreement, MCE Leisure shall indemnify and

indemnified against all claims, actions, demands, actions and proceedings madé
injury, from MCE

any person arising as a result of or in connection with any loss, damage or
Leisure’s use and operation of business on the leased property.

Guarantees

Under the Cooperation Agreement, Belle has irrevocably and unconditionally gu
Holdings Group the due and punctual observance, performance and discharge of]

PLAI and each SM Group’s company, and indemnified MCE Holdings Group a

loss incurred in connection with any default by the Philippine Parties under

Agreement. MCE Leisure has likewise irrevocably and unconditionally guarant
Philippine Parties the due and punctual observance, performance and discharge

of MCE Holdings Group, and indemnified the Philippine Parties against any anc
in connection with any default by MCE Holdings Group under the Cooperation A

|under capital risk

severally liable to
Licensee) must
arising out of, or
a] License. Also,
eaching party for

keep Belle fully
against Belle by

aranteed to MCE
all obligations of
gains’é any and all
the Cooperation
>ed to each of the
of all obligations
all loss incurred
 greement.

:

i
i
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24. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equival,‘ents and restricted
cash which will be used for City of Dreams Manila. The Group has other financial assets and
liabilities such as security deposit, other deposits and receivables, amount due from a shareholder,
accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities, amount due to| ultimate holding
company, amount due to immediate holding company and amounts due to affiliated companies which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and foreign exchange risk. Management reviews and approves policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarized below.

Interest Rate Risk ;
Other than the bank balances which carry interest at market rates, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities and its operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Accordingly, management are of the opinion that the Group does not
have significant interest rate risk. :

Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group.

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. It is the pglicy of the Group
that all third parties who wish to trade on credit terms are subjected to credit verification procedures.
Other current and noncurrent assets are monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the
exposure of the Group to bad debts is not significant. The Group does not offer credit terms to third
parties, without the specific approval of management. :

With respect to credit risk from the financial assets of the Group, which are composed’ of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, security deposit, other deposits and receivables and amount due from
a shareholder, the exposure of the Group to credit risk arises from the default of bank where the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash were deposited, the default of the counterparty
of which the security deposit and other dep051ts and receivables were held and the default of
repayment from a shareholder, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying| amount of these
instruments. There is no significant concentration of credit risk in the Group. '

Credit Risk Exposures. The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk since the financial assets have no collateral or credit enhancements as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012,
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24. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies - continued

Credit Risk - continued

Credit Quality per Class of Financial Assets. Cash and cash equivalents and

considered as high grade and include deposits made to reputable banks in the Ph

Lﬁestricted cash are
1

ippines. Amount

due from a shareholder and other deposits and receivables are considered as high grade as MCE will

provide financial support to the shareholder of the Company to meet in full its finan
they fall due and the Group only trades with recognized and creditworthy third
deposit is also classified as high grade since the security deposit in relation to the L
placed with Belle, a company listed in the PSE with positive financial performance.

December 31, 2013

Neither Past Due nor Impaired

cial obligations as

parties. Security

ease Agreement is

High Standard  Past Due but not
Grade Grade Impaired Impaired Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P8,599,842 B~ P B P8,599,842
Amount due from a
shareholder 5,425 - - - 5,425
Deposits and receivables 100,371 - - - 100,371
Restricted cash 2,226,674 - - —- 2,226,674
B10,932,312 f P B 'R10,932,312
December 31, 2012
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
High Standard  Past Due but not
Grade Grade Impaired Impaired Total
Financial Asset
Cash and cash equivalents R1,152,022 P P o £1,152,022

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential of not meeting obligations as they become due becaus
liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding or is the risk that the Group will not b

obligations associated with financial difficulties.

e of an inability to
e able to meet its

manages its liquid funds through cash planning on a monthly basis. The Group u

es historical data

The Group obtains funding from ultimate holding company and immediate hold;ng company and

and forecasts from its collection and disbursement to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet capital
expenditure and operational needs. The forecast takes into consideration of the Group’s issuance of

new shares and debt financing plans and covenant compliance requirements.
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24. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies - continued

Liguidity Risk - continued

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets
purposes and financial liabilities as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 based

contractual cash flows.

December 31, 2013

held for liquidity
on undiscounted

-3 3-5 Over
Within | Year Years Years 5 Years Total

Finaneial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents PR,599,842 B P- P P8,599,842
Amount due from a shareholder 5,428 - - - 5425
Deposits and receivables 10,629 12,808 7,029 175,699 205,465
Restricted cash - 2,226,674 - - 2,226,674
Finzancial Liabilities
Accrued expenses, other payables

and other current liabilities* P884,496 | o B- P P384,496
Amount due to ultimate holding

company 107,787 - - - 167,787
Amount due to immediate holding

company 887,415 - - - 887415
Amounts due to affiliated companies 353,591 - - - 353,591
Current portion of obligations under

finance lease 1,316,868 - - - 1,316,868
Noncurrent portion of obligations

under finance lease - 2,986,078 3,548,910 36,160,760 42,695,748

December 31, 2012
1-3 3-5 Over
Within 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total

Financial Asset
Cash and cash equivalents £1,152,022 B o P 21,152,022
Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses, other payables

and other current liabilities* #35,338 P B B P35,338
Amount due to ultimate holding

company 90,434 - - - 90,434
Amounts due to affiliated companies 21,903 - - - 21,903

*Excluding government and statutory liabilities

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate

foreign exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from transactions deno

due to changes in

inated in foreign

currencies, mainly Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars, Macau Patacas, Australian dollars and

Singapore dollars. Foreign exchange risks of the Group are regularly reviewed b
and appropriate processes are in place to monitor and mitigate the said risks by maintaining a certain

amount of operating funds in the same currencies in which the Group has obligation

to time. Management decides not to hedge the currency exposures considering th
being higher than the currency exposure.

Fhe ‘management

s to pay from time
> cost of hedging
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24, Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies - continued
Foreign Exchange Risk - continued :
The following table shows the Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities
and their peso equivalents: f
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012:
Foreign Philippine Foreign .Philippine
Currency Peso Currency - Peso
Financial Asset
Cash and cash equivalents:
United States dollar (“US$”) US$502,697 22,387 US5200,196 : 8,254
22,387 : 8,254
Foreign Currency-denominated Financial Asset 22,387 j 8,254
Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses, other payables
and other current liabilities:
Hong Kong dollar (“HKS$™) HK$3,823,272 21,885 HK$165,088 : 875
US$ US$1,061,348 47,266 - -
69,151 ' 875
Amount due to uftimate holding company:
HK$ HK$2,634,522 15,080 HK$2,593,412 13,744
Macau Patacas (“MOP”) MOP11,114,897 61,770 MOP22,563 116
USS US$1,879,012 83,679 US$1,848,197 76,241
160,529 . 90,101
Amount due to immediate
holding company:
HKS$ HK$155,600,000 890,670 - -
890,670 -
Amounts due to affiliated companies:
Australian dollar (*“AUD™) AUD7,439 294 - -
HK$ HK$14,746,789 84,412 HK$96,818 513
MOP MOP44,343,000 246,431  MOP4,157,280 21,389
Singapore dollar (“SGD"} $GD1,713 60 - -
uss$ US8$320,007 14,251 - -
345,448 : 21,902
Current portion of obligations under
finance lease:
Us$ US$179,390 7,989 - -
7,989 -
Noncurrent portion of obligations
under finance lease:
Uss US$858,008 38210 - -
38,210 -
Foreign Currency-denominated '
Financial Liabilities 1,511,997 - 112,878
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24. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies - continued

Foreign Exchange Risk - continued
In translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities into
Group used the following rates of exchange as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

yeso amounts, the

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

Philippine peso to 1 unit of foreign currency: '
AUD 39.58 N/A
HK$ 5.72 5.30
MOP 5.56 5.15
SGD 35.03 N/A
US$ 44.53 41.23

The Group recognized net foreign exchange loss of 112,195 and 427 for the year ended December

31, 2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, respective

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before income tax.

ly.

foreign exchange
There is no other

impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting the total comprehen[ive loss.

December 31, December 31, -
2013 2012 .
% Change Effect on % Change Effect on
Currency Loss Currency Loss
Rate Before Income Tax Rate  Before Income Tax
AUD +1.4% B4 N/A BEN/A
-1.4% {4) N/A N/A
HKS +1.3% 13,157 +0.7% 106
-1.3% (13,157) -0.7% ~ (106)
MOP +1.3% 4,007 +0.7% 151
-1.3% (4,007) -0.7% (151)
SGD +0.9% 1 N/A N/A
-0.9% (1) N/A N/A
USS +1.3% 2,197 +0.7% 476
-1.3% (2,197) -0.7% - (476)

The change in currency rate is based on the Group’s best estimate of expected ¢
historical trends and experiences.

hange considering

Positive change in currency rate reflects a stronger peso against foreign currency. ©On the other hand,

a negative change in currency rate reflects a weaker peso dgainst foreign currency.
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24,

25.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies - continued

Capital Risk Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that the Gr

oup has sufficient

funds in order to support its business, pay existing obligations and maximize sharePolde:r value. The
Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes|in economic

conditions. To manage or adjust the capital structure, the Group may obt]
shareholders, ultimate holding company, immediate holding company, debt finanag
new shares.

The Group considers total equity as its capital which amounted to 213,333,691 an
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

ain funding from
ing or issuance of

|
i?l,(|)57,642 as of

|
|
Under the terms of the Provisional License, it requires each Licensees to maintain a debt-to-equity

ratio under the definition as agreed with PAGCOR (the “D/E Ratic™) of not mo
Note 23(c)). The D/E Ratio is calculated as total liabilities (excluding obligati

re tha:m 70:30 (see
ons under finance

lease) over total equity. The Group’s strategy is to monitor capital and maintaify the ID/E Ratio to

comply with the PAGCOR requirements and the D/E Ratio as of December 31, 201
on the separate financial statements for each of the companies of MCE Holdi

follows:
De

D/E Ratio
MCE Holdings
MCE Holdings No. 2
MCE lLeisure

As of December 31, 2013, MCE Holdings Group as one of the parties as Licensees
the D/E Ratio as required by PAGCOR.

Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents, Amount due from a shareholder, Other deposits
Restricted cash, Accrued expenses, other payables and other curvent liabilitie
ultimate holding company, Amount due to immediate holding company and Amour,
companies. The carrying values approximate their fair values at reporting date dy
short-term maturities of the transactions.

Security deposit and Current and Noncurrent portion of obligations under finance lease.

carrying values approximate their fair values, which are measured by discountin
cash flows to present value using a credit-adjusted discount rate.

3 cor:nputed based
ngs IGroup are as

cembier 31,
2013
|

0:100
0:100
2875

has c|omplied with

and receivables,
s, Amount due to
its dule to affiliated
he toithe relatively

: The
g estimated future
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25. Financial Instruments - continued

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair vaIues: of financial

instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect onj the recorded fair

value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded ffair value that

are not based on observable market data.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group does not have financial instruments thét are carried
and measured at fair value. For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from August
13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, there were no transfers between Level 1 and ]&evel% 2 fair value

measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

26. Note to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(a) For the year ended December 31, 2013, building under finance lease and fum iturts:,E fixtures and

equipment of B11,755,719 and B49,543, respectively, were funded through
finance lease (For the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012: nil).

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2013, contract acquisition costs of 5,808 a
through amounts due to affiliated companies and amount due to ultimate
respectively (For the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012:

obligations under

d nilé were funded
olding company,
343 and B58,084,

respectively). For the year ended December 31, 2013, contract acquisition gosts amounting to
P64,721 was capitalized in building under finance lease (For the period from August 13,2012 to

December 31, 2012: nil)

(c) For the year ended December 31, 2013, fit-out construction costs and cost of property and
equipment in total of 700,807, 185,623 and nil were funded through accruled expenses, other
payables and other current liabilities, amounts due to affiliated companies and amount due to
ultimate holding company, respectively (For the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31,

2012: P5,594, 21,512 and £10,512, respectively).

(d) For the year ended December 31, 2013, part of the transaction costs for the
capitalized in additional paid-in capital of 6,058 was funded through accru

issuance of shares
ed expenses, other

payables and other current liabilities (For the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012:

nil),

(€) For the year ended December 31, 2013, interest expenses capitalized in fit-out construction costs
of 147,553 was funded through obligations under finance lease (For the period from August 13,

2012 to December 31, 2012: nil).
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26. Note to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - continued

27.

(f) For the year ended December 31, 2013, other intangible assets of 85,624 we
accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities (For the period
2012 to December 31, 2012: nil).

(g) For the year ended December 31, 2013, other noncurrent assets of £16,092
funded through accrued expenses, other payables and other current liabilities a
affiliated companies, respectively (For the period from August 13, 2012 to Dx
nil).

re funded through
from August 13,

and £1,572 were
nd amounts due to
scember 31, 2012:

(h) For the year ended December 31, 2013, prepaid license fee of 6,680 was funded through accrued

expenses, other payables and other current liabilities (For the period from Al
December 31, 2012: nil).

Employee Benefit Plans

ugust 13, 2012 to

Employees employed by the Group are members of government-managed Social Security System
Scheme (the “SSS Scheme™) operated by the Philippines Government and the Gljoup is required to

pay at a certain percentage of the employee’s relevant income and met the mi
requirements to fund the benefits. The obligation of the Group with respect to
operated by the Philippines Government is to make the required contributions under

One of the executive officers employed by the Group is a member of Mandator
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) operated by MCE in Hong Kong, the executive offi
to the MPF Scheme is set at 5% of the executive officer’s relevant income up

nimum mandatory
the SSS Scheme
the scheme.

'y Provident Fund
cer’s contributions
to a maximum of

HK$1,250 per executive officer per month. The Group’s contribution to the MP%‘ Scheme is set at

10% of the executive officer’s base salaries, The excess of contributions over the
portion, which is 5% of the executive officer’s relevant income up to a maximu

roup’s mandatory
of HK$1,250 per

executive officer per month, are treated as the Group’s voluntary contribution and are vested to the
executive officer at 10% per year with full vesting in 10 years. The Group’s mandatory contributions
to the MPF Scheme are fully and immediately vested to the executive officer once they are paid. The

MPF Scheme was established by MCE under trust with the assets of the funds he
those of MCE and the Group by an independent trustee.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from August 13, 2012
2012, the Group’s contributions into the defined contribution plans were 2,415 and

ld separately from

to December 31,
nil, respectively.
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28. Share Incentive Plan

On February 19, 2013, the Group adopted a share incentive plan (“Share Incentiv

Plan®) to promote

the success and enhance the value of the Group by linking personal interests of members of the Board,
employees and consultants to those of the stockholders and by providing such individuals with an

incentive for outstanding performance to generate superior returns to the stockh

approved by the SEC and became effective on April 12, 2013. On June 21, 2013,

olders which was
he sharcholders of

the Parent Company approved the minor amendments on additional provisions of the Share Incentive

Plan which was approved by the SEC and became effective on June 24, 2013.
Incentive Plan, the Group may grant various share-based awards, including but not|

Under the Share
limited to, options

to purchase the Parent Company’s shares, restricted shares, share appreciation rights ard other types

of awards. The term of such awards shall not exceed 10 years from the date of gra
aggregate number of shares which may be issued pursuant to all awards under il
Plan is 442,630,330 shares and with up to 5% of the issued capital stock of the Par
time to time over 10 years. As of December 31, 2013, 47,098,936 shares remai
grant of various share-based awards under the Share Incentive Plan.

Share Options

The Group granted share options to certain personnel under the Share Incentive
ended December 31, 2013 with the exercise price determined at the higher of the ¢
date of grant and the average closing price for the five trading days preceding the d
share options will become exercisable over a vesting period of three years, with th
on 30 days after the opening of City of Dreams Manila. The share options grant
after the date of grant. '
The Group uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the estimated 1
option grant issued, with highly subjective assumptions, changes in which could rr
estimated fair value. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility o
publicly traded companies. Expected term is based upon the vesting term or the his
term of publicly traded companies. The risk-free interest rate used for each period
on the Philippine Government bond yield at the time of grant for the period equ
term.

The fair value per option under the Share Incentive Plan was estimated at the date
following weighted-average assumptions for options granted for the year ended Des

Expected dividend yield

Expected stock price volatility
Risk-free interest rate

Expected average life of options (years)

nt. The maximum
he Share Incentive
ent Company from
n available for the

Plan for the year
losing price on the
rte of grant. These
¢ first year vesting
ed expire 10 years

fair value for each
\aterially affect the
f a peer group of
torical of expected
presented is based
al to the expected

of grant using the
ember 31, 2013

45.00%
3.73%
5.0
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28. Share Incentive Plan - continued

A summary of share options activity under the Share Incentive Plan as of Decem
changes for the year ended December 31, 2013 are presented below:

ber 31, 2013, and

Weighted-

Weighted- Average:
Number Average Remaining Aggregate
of Share Exercise  Contractual Intrinsic
Options  Price per Share  Term Value
Outstanding as of January 1, 2013 ............. - P
Granted ..ooovvevevever e e 120,826,336 8.30
Forfeited......cconvmmnivmeermerencrnecrecnecrene e, {4,682,183) 8.30
QOutstanding as of December 31, 2013....... 116,144,153 £8.30 9.50 P624,856

As of December 31, 2013, no share options granted under the Share Incentive Plaj
exercisable.

A summary of share options expected to vest under the Share Incentive Plan as of T

are presented below:

Expected to Vest

n were vested and

ecember 31, 2013

ohted-

Wei
Weighted- Average’
Number Average Remaining Aggregate
of Share Exercise = Contractual Intrinsic
Options  Price per Share  Term - Value
Exercise price per share.......ccccvveviieenns 116,144,153 P8.3 £624,856

9.50

The weighted-average fair value of share options granted under the Share Incentive
ended December 31, 2013 was B3.68. As of December 31, 2013, there were 2298
compensation costs related to unvested share options under the Share Incentive ]
were expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.58 years.

Restricted Shares

The Group has also granted restricted shares to certain personnel under the Share
the year ended December 31, 2013. These restricted shares have'a vesting period q
the first year vesting on 30 days after the opening of City of Dreams Manila. The g
is determined with reference to the market closing price of the Parent Company’s
the date of grant.

> Plan for the year
,153 unrecognized
Plan and the costs

Incentive Plan for
f three years, with
rant date fair value
common share at
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28. Share Incentive Plan - continued
Restricted Shares - continued

A summary of the status of the Share Incentive Plan’s restricted shares as of December 31, 2013, and
changes for the year ended December 31, 2013 are presented below:

Number of Weighted-
Restricted Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested as of January 1, 2013 ..., - ; o
G771 117="« [OOSR SR 60,413,167 : 8.30
Forfeited. ..ot (2,341,091) 8.30

Unvested as of December 31, 2013 ..oriveeiiiiiieineens 58,072,076 , B8.30

No restricted shares under the Share Incentive Plan were vested for the year ended December 31,
2013. As of December 31, 2013, there were 2332,666 unrecognized compensation costs related to
restricted shares under the Share Incentive Plan and the costs were expected to be|recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.53 years.

The impact of share options and restricted shares for the year ended December 31, 2013 recognized in
the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2013
Share Incentive Plan :
Share options P128,819
Restricted shares 149,332
Total share-based compensation expenses B278,151
Share-based compensation expenses
recognized as pre-opening costs P95,936
Consultancy fee in consideration for share
awards recognized as pre-opening costs 182,215
P278,151

29. Subsequent Event

On January 24, 2014, the issuance of the Senior Notes was completed, further detaifs of the Senior
Notes was disclosed in Note 21,
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30. Other Matter

As described in Note 2, the business combination had been accounted for sim

ilar to a reverse
of the financial

acquisition and the consolidated financial statements represent a continuation

ended December 31, 2011 was presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,

statements of the MCE Holdings Group and not of MCP. No comparative infomg‘ation for the year

consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows because MCE

Holdings Group, the accounting acquirer, was only incorporated in August 2012 and
which MCE gained control on MCP was on December 19, 2012,

In compliance with the requested information of the SEC, the following are the cond
relating to the year ended December 31, 2011 of MCP before the application of the r
as discussed in Note 2. These information pertain to the previous business of MCP.

i
1

Revenues

Cost of sales

Gross income

Income before tax

Net income

Total comprehensive income

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

the effective date

ensed information
everse acquisition

Tor the Year Ended

December 31, 2011

B1,767,314
1,462,156
305,158
124,045
89,551
89,551
87,960
49,290
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation '
Aseana Boulevard cor. Rozas Boulevard
Brgy. Tambo, Parafiaque City 1701

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Melco Crown (Philippines) Resorts Corporation as at and for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of char:lges in
equity and staternents of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the jperiod from
August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012, included in this Form 17-A and have issued ouri report
thereon dated April 11, 2014. Qur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion;on the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to the Qonsolidated
Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Com:pany’s
management. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation
Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), and are not part of the basic financial statex]nentsf. The
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information requireb to be
set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. |

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Roel E. Lucas
Partner :
CPA Certificate No. 98200 !
SEC Accreditation No. 1079-AR-1 (Group A), |
March 4, 2014, valid until March 3, 2017 i
Tax Identification No. 191-180-015 i
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-95-2014, ,
Janvary 22, 2014, valid until January 21, 2017
PTR No. 4225185, January 2, 2014, Makati City

April 11,2014 ' ' !
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MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION

Schedule A. Financial assets
As of December 31, 2013

(In thousands of Philippine peso)

Name of issuing entity and description of each issue

Amounts shown in the
Balance Sheet

Interest income
received and

accrued
Cash and cash equivalents:
BDO Unibank, Inc. 6,123,534 32,659
Bank of China Manila Branch 2,475,621 15,609
Petty cash 687 -
8,599,842 48,268
Amount due from a shareholder:
MCE (Philippines) Investments No.2 Corporaticn 5425 -
Deposits and receivables:
Belle Corporation {Security Deposit) 70,505 2,700
Microsourcing International, Ltd. 9,446 -
SM Investments Corporation 7,029 -
BDO Unibank, Inc 2,889 -
Common Goal Real Properties, Inc. 2,549 -
Bank of China Manila Branch 1,878 -
Mega Asia Equity Development Corp. 1,683 -
Alfonso Anggala 1,683 -
Microsourcing International, Ltd. 1,312 -
IPMC Enterprise Developments Inc 813 -
Pemnon Holdings Inc. 400 -
SM Investments Corporation 100 -
Federal Brent Retail, Incorporated 50 -
Exclusive Cars International Holdings, Inc. 34 -
100,371 2,700
Restricted cash:
BDO Unibank, Inc. 2,226,674 3,538
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
As of December 31, 2013
MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION

1

Unappropriated Retained Earnings per financial statements, beginning P 730;,'776,531
l

Adjustments: Cost of treasury shares held (288,514,127)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings P 4425,262,404
|

Net loss based on the face of AFS (261,:913,987)

Less: Non actual/unrealized income net of tax '
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture i
Unrealized foreign exchange loss — net {(except those attributable to 1 505,216

Cash and Cash Equivalents) Unrealized actuarial gain |
Fair Value adjustment (M2MM gains)
Fair Value adjusiment of Investment Property resulting to gain
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP-gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustmenis to the retained earnings
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS

Add: Non-actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation increment {after tax) i
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP — loss
Loss on fair value adjustment of Investment property (after tax) i

i
Net Income Actual/Realized B 180,853,633

|
Add: Cost of treasury shares sold 28!?,5 14,127

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS |

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION, AS ADJUSTED, BEGINNING _P 46§,367,760




MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION
Key Performance Indicators

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and

for the period from August 13, 2012 to December 31, 2012

2013 2012
Current ratio C'ur!‘e.n.t assets over current 2.58 5.98
liabilities
Debt-to-equity ratio Total liabilities over total equity L11 0.18
Asset to equity ratio Total assets over total equity 2.11 1.18
Earning/(loss) before interest
::EFJCSt rate coverage expense and taxes over interest (0.87) 4
expense
Return on assets Net income/(loss) over total assets -8.75% -3.98%
Return on equity Net income/(loss) over total equity -18.48% -4.71%




MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES) RESORTS CORPORATION

Mapping of relationships between and among the company and its ultimate paren{ company,

Public

23.62%

Y

As of December 31, 2013

Melco Crown
Entertainment Limited

h 4

100%

MCE Holdings Limited

+ 100%

MCE (Philippines) Investments Limited

middle parent, subsidiaries or co-subsidiaries, and associates

A 4

100%

MCE (Philippines) Investments No.2 Corporation*

+ 3.93%

MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES)

RESORTS C

ORPORATION

(MCP)

72.45%

.
-

A

100%

y

MCE Holdings (Philippines) Corporation*

h

y 100%

MCE Holdings No. 2 (P

hilippines) Corporation*

i 160%

MCE Leisure (Philippines) Corporation®

* The shares of these companies are owned 0.01% by 5 nominee directors of these companies

respectively.




MELCO CROWN (PHILIPPINES RESORTS CORPO
Iy Ty '_ .
doj

BT D i
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial X

Statements
Concepiual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary X

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting X
(Revised) Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27; Costof an X
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First- X
time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from X
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and X
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters :

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans i X
PFRS2 Share-based Payment X

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and X
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based X ,
Payment Transactions

PFRS 3 Business Combinations X
(Revised) ;
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts ’ X
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee X
Contracts .
PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued X
Operations
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources X
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures X
Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition X
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of X
Financial Assets
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of X

Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

{continued)
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Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures abou

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Financial Instruments *
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of X
Financial Assets
A_mend_ments to PFRS .7: Di:sclos.urelsl—. Offfsetting X
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
PFRS 8 Operating Segments X
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments — New Hedge Accounting
Requirements
PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements X
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities
PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement X
Philippine Accounting Standards
PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements X
(Revised) Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures X
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
AMENDMENTS TO PAS 1: PRESENTATION OF [TEMS OF
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
PAS 2 Inventories X
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows X
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates X
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date X
PAS 11 Construction Contracts
PAS 12 Income Taxes X
Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment X
PAS 17 Leases X
PAS 18 Revenue X
:PAS 19 Employee Benefits X
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, X
Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 19 Employee Benefits X
{Revised)

(continued)




Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of

Government Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates X
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23 Borrowing Costs X

(Revised)

PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures X

(Revised)

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements X

PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements X

(Amended) Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities

PAS 28 Investments in Associates

PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

(Amended)

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation X
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

PAS 33 Earnings per Share X

PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting X

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets X
Amendments to PAS 36; Recoverable Ameunt
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets X

PAS 38 Intangible Assets X

PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement X
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial X

Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Iniragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

{continued)
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Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee x
Contracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of X
Financial Assets
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of < %
Financial Assets — Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and X
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives '
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items X
Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and X
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PAS 40 Investment Property . X
PAS 41 Agriculture X
Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and X
Similar Liabilities
IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar X
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease X
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, , X
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market . X
- Waste Electrical and Elecironic Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 X
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies '
IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 ' X
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives X
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and X
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment X
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions X '
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements o X
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes X
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding X
Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, X
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate X
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation X
(continued)




IFRIC 17

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers i
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity |
Instruments |
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine I
|
IFRIC 21 Levies |
S1C-7 Introduction of the Euro |
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities
SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12
SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Coniributions
by Venturers
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives i
SIC-21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable '
Assets
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or
its Shareholders
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.
SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs
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